
 

 

Town of Belgrade 

Planning Board 
August 5, 2021 / 6:00 p.m. 

 
This meeting will be conducted online via Zoom at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83033101494 

A G E N D A 
Call to Order 
 
1. OLD BUSINESS 

 

A. PUBLIC HEARING : COMMERICIAL DEVELOPMENT –   
Applicants/Owners: Gagne & Son Concrete Block LLC 
Location: 28 Old Route 27 : Map 4 Lot 37 
Purpose: New commercial use.  Proposing to erect a new one-story 14,540 sf 
pre-cast plant.  The pre-cast plant will manufacture catch basins, manholes, etc.  
Proposed name:  Gagne & Son Precast Plant 
**No abutters to contact for this application 

 
 
2. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. SHORELAND APPLICATION –  

Applicant/Owner: William Mitchell 

Location: 142 Main St (Long Pond), Map 26 Lot 4  

Purpose: Reinforce foundation, pour slab, replace existing deck with enclosed 

room (non-conforming structure on a non-conforming lot).  

 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Continued review of Town’s Subdivision Ordinance with KVCOG planner 
Charles Tetelman. 

 
B.  Discuss Commercial Development vegetative screening standards.  

 

 
3. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of meeting minutes from June 22, 2021 and July 15, 2021. 
 

ADJOURN 













































































































































   

 
 
 

OIL SPILL PREVENTION CONTROL 
AND 

COUNTERMEASURE (SPCC) PLAN 
 

UNDER 
 

TITLE 40 CFR PART 112 
 

FOR 
 

GAGNE & SON 
 
 

       
 
  Prepared for:  GAGNE & SON 

28 Old Route 27 Road 
Belgrade, Maine 04917 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

MARCH 2020 
JN: 10085.003 

 
 
 

Report Prepared By: 
CES, Inc. 

465 South Main Street  
PO Box 639 

Brewer, Maine 04412 
207-989-4824 

  



   

JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER CERTIFICATION 
 
MANAGEMENT APPROVAL 
 
COMPLIANCE INSPECTION PLAN REVIEW PAGE 
 
SECTION                      PAGE 
 
SECTION 1 | APPLICABILITY ............................................................................................... 1-1 

Section 1.1  Facility Operations Description and General Facility Information (112.7(a)(3)) .1-1 
Section 1.2  General    Applicability (112.1) .........................................................................1-1 
Section 1.3  Qualified Facility Applicability (112.3(g)) ...........................................................1-1 
Section 1.4  Facility Response Plan Applicability .................................................................1-1 

SECTION 2 | GENERAL SPCC REQUIREMENTS ................................................................ 2-1 
Section 2.1  Facilities and Procedures to be Implemented 40 CFR 112 ...............................2-1 
Section 2.2  Conformance with 40 CFR 112 (112.7 (a)(1)) ..................................................2-1 
Section 2.3  Deviations, Nonconformance, or Alternative Measures (112.7(a)(2)) ...............2-1 
Section 2.4  Physical Facility Layout (112.7(a)(3)) ...............................................................2-1 

Section 2.4.1 Oil Storage Containers (112.7(a)(3)(i)) .......................................................2-1 
Section 2.4.2 Discharge Prevention Measures & Product Handling (112.7(a)(3)(ii)) ........2-5 
Section 2.4.3 Discharge and Drainage Controls (112.7(a)(3)(iii)) .....................................2-6 
Section 2.4.4 Countermeasures for Discharge (112.7(a)(3)(iv)) .......................................2-6 
Section 2.4.5 Disposal Methods (112.7(a)(3)(v)) ..............................................................2-9 
Section 2.4.6 Emergency Contact List (112.7(a)(3)(vi)) ...................................................2-9 

Section 2.5  Spill Reporting (112.7(a)(4)) ........................................................................... 2-11 
Section 2.6  Plan Organization/Emergency Response (112.7(a)(5)) .................................. 2-12 

SECTION 3 | CONTAINMENT AND DISCHARGE PREDICTIONS ........................................ 3-1 
Section 3.1   Spill Prediction and Direction (112.7(b)) .............................................................3-1 
Section 3.2   Containment (112.7(c)) .....................................................................................3-2 
Section 3.3  Impracticability of Containment (112.7(d)) ..........................................................3-2 

SECTION 4 | INSPECTION, TESTS, AND RECORDS ............................................................ 4-1 
Section 4.1  Tank Inspections (112.7(e)) .............................................................................4-1 
Section 4.2  Training (112.7(f)(1)) ........................................................................................4-2 
Section 4.3  Designated Person Accountable for Spill Prevention (112.7(f)(2)) ....................4-2 
Section 4.4  Spill Prevention Briefings (112.7(f)(3)) ..............................................................4-2 

SECTION 5 | SECURITY (112.7(g)) ....................................................................................... 5-1 
Section 5.1   Access to Handling, Processing, or Storage .....................................................5-1 
Section 5.2   Secure Flow Valves ..........................................................................................5-1 
Section 5.3   Secure Starter Controls ....................................................................................5-1 
Section 5.4   Pipeline Loading/Unloading Connection Securely Capped ...............................5-1 
Section 5.5   Lighting ............................................................................................................5-1 

SECTION 6 | FACILITY TANK TRUCK LOADING/UNLOADING OPERATIONS .................. 6-2 
Section 6.1  Secondary Containment for Vehicles (112.7(h)(1)) ...........................................6-2 
Section 6.2  Warning or Barrier System for Vehicles (112.7(h)(2)) .......................................6-2 
Section 6.3  Lowermost Drainage Inspection Outlets (112.7(h)(3)) ......................................6-2 

SECTION 7 | BRITTLE FRACTURE EVALUATION ............................................................... 7-1 
Section 7.1  Brittle Fracture Evaluations (112.7(i)) ...............................................................7-1 

SECTION 8 | STATE RULES, REGULATIONS, AND GUIDELINES ...................................... 8-1 
Section 8.1  Conformance with Applicable State Rules and Regulations (112.7(j)) ..............8-1 



   

JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 9 | QUALIFIED OIL FILLED OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT .................................. 9-1 
Section 9.1  Qualified Oil-Filled Operational Equipment (112.7(k)(1)) ..................................9-1 
Section 9.2    Oil-Filled Equipment Inspection and Monitoring (112.7(k)(2)) .........................9-1 

SECTION 10 | FACILITY DRAINAGE .................................................................................. 10-1 
Section 10.1      Drainage from Diked Storage Areas (112.8(b)(1)) ....................................... 10-1 
Section 10.2  Valves Used on Diked Area Storage (112.8(b)(2)) ...................................... 10-1 
Section 10.3  Drainage Systems from Undiked Areas (112.8(b)(3)) ................................. 10-1 
Section 10.4  Final Discharge of Drainage (112.8(b)(4)) ................................................... 10-1 
Section 10.5      Facility Drainage Systems and Equipment (112.8(b)(5)) ............................. 10-1 

SECTION 11 | BULK STORAGE CONTAINERS ................................................................. 11-1 
Section 11.1    Tank Compatibility with its Contents (112.8(c)(1)) ........................................ 11-1 
Section 11.2     Secondary Containment Construction (112.8(c)(2)) .................................... 11-1 
Section 11.3     Diked Areas, Inspection and Drainage of Rainwater (112.8(c)(3)) .............. 11-1 
Section 11.4     Corrosion of Buried Metallic Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(4)) ........................... 11-1 
Section 11.5      Corrosion Protection of Partially Buried or Bunkered Metallic Tanks 

(112.8(c)(5))……………………………………………………………………    11-1 
Section 11.6      Bulk Storage Container Integrity Testing (112.8(c)(6)) ............................... 11-2 
Section 11.7     Control of Leakage through Internal Heating Coils (112.8(c)(7)) ................. 11-2 
Section 11.8      Tank Installation Fail-Safe Engineered (112.8(c)(8)) .................................. 11-2 
Section 11.9       Observation of Disposal Facilities for Effluent Discharge (112.8(c)(9)) ....... 11-3 
Section 11.10    Oil Leak Corrections from Tank Seams and Gaskets (112.8(c)(10)) ........... 11-3 
Section 11.11 Appropriate Position of Mobile or Portable Oil Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(11))

 …………………………………………………………………………………    11-3 
SECTION 12 | FACILITY TRANSFER OPERATIONS .......................................................... 12-1 

Section 12.1  Buried Piping Installation Protection (112.8(d)(1)) ....................................... 12-1 
Section 12.2  Not-In-Service Terminal Connections (112.8(d)(2)) .................................... 12-1 
Section 12.3  Pipe Supports Design (112.8(d)(3)) ............................................................ 12-1 
Section 12.4  Aboveground Valve and Pipeline Examination (112.8(d)(4)) ....................... 12-1 
Section 12.5  Aboveground Piping Protection from Vehicular Traffic (112.8(d)(5)) ........... 12-1 

 
APPENDICES 

Appendix A  Location Map and Site Plan 
Appendix B  Secondary Containment Calculations for Diked Storage Areas 
Appendix C  Aid Agreements 
Appendix D  Completed Monthly Facility Inspection Report and Checklist 

 Completed Spill/Leak Report Forms 
 Completed Spill Prevention Training Reports 
 Completed Annual Spill Prevention Briefing Reports 
 Completed Drainage Discharge Log 

Appendix E Applicability of Substantial Harm Criteria 
Appendix F    Facility Installations and Implementation Schedule 



   

JN:  10085.003 I 2020 SPCC Plan 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER CERTIFICATION (112.3(d)(1)) 
 
I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Plan and the Plan satisfies the requirements of 40 CFR 
Part 112.  By means of this certification I attest to the following: 
 

1. That I am familiar with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 112; 
2. That I, or my agent, has visited and examined the facility; 
3. That the Plan has been prepared in accordance with good engineering practice, 

including consideration of applicable industry standards, and with the requirements of 
40 CFR Part 112; 

4. That procedures for required inspections and testing have been established; and  
5. That the Plan is adequate for the facility for which it has been prepared. 

 
Engineer:    Christopher “Toby” Michaud P.E.   
 
Signature:          

  
Registration Number: 12674     

 
State:    Maine   

 
Date:     March 2020   

  
 

MANAGEMENT APPROVAL 
(112.7(d)(2)) 

 
Gagne and Son is committed to the prevention of discharges of oil to navigable waters and the 
environment and maintains the highest standards for spill prevention control and 
countermeasures through regular review, updating, and implementation of this Spill Prevention 
Control and Countermeasure Plan. 
 
 
 
Authorized Signature:  
 
 
Title:  
 
 
Date:  



   

JN:  10085.003 II 2020 SPCC Plan 

SPILL PREVENTION CONTROL AND COUNTERMEASURE (SPCC) 
COMPLIANCE INSPECTION PLAN REVIEW PAGE 

(40 CFR 112.5(b)) 
 
Gagne and Son (Gagne) will review and evaluate this SPCC Plan at least once every five years 
and document the completion of the review and evaluation (see Table 1 below).  As a result of 
this review and evaluation, the SPCC Plan will be amended to include more effective prevention 
and control technology if: 1) such technology will significantly reduce the likelihood of a spill event 
from the facility, and 2) if such technology has been field-proven at the time of review.  
Additionally, amendments to the SPCC Plan are required at any time when there is a change in 
facility design, construction, operation, or maintenance that materially affects the facility’s 
potential for a discharge of oil into or upon the navigable waters of the United States or adjoining 
shorelines.  Amendments to the SPCC Plan are required no later than six months from the date 
when changes are identified as a result of the review and evaluation or six months from the date 
any change at the facility has been made which affects the potential for a discharge of oil.  Each 
amendment to the Plan shall be implemented no later than six months following the preparation 
of the amendment.  Any technical amendments to the SPCC Plan shall be certified by a 
Professional Engineer in accordance with 40 CFR Part 112.3 (d).  
 

Table 1: Plan Review and Certification 

 

DATE OF 
CHANGE/
REVIEW 

PAGES 
AFFECTED CHANGE 

AMENDMENT 
REQUIRED? 

(Y/N) 
SIGNATURE 

 
6/24/19 

 
All Tank locations, and 

permanently closed tanks 
 

Yes CES, Inc. 

 
     

     
 
     

     
 
     
 
     



   

JN:  10085.003 1-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 1 | APPLICABILITY 
 
Section 1.1 Facility Operations Description and General Facility Information (112.7(a)(3)) 
Gagne’s Belgrade facility is approximately 41 acres and includes a quarry, retail space, and a 
concrete manufacturing plant.  Gagne manufactures concrete and masonry products at this 
location for distribution to retail locations throughout Maine.  A Site Plan in Appendix A depicts 
the buildings and layout of the facility.  
 
The facility operates Monday through Friday from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM and on Saturdays from 
1:00 AM to 12:00 PM.  Truck traffic to the site is approximately two trips per day, Monday through 
Friday, between the hours of 6:00 AM and 4:00 PM.  The Site Plan in Appendix A depicts 
stormwater drainage directions and AST locations. 
 
The facility stores oil for the purpose of heating buildings, kilns, and fueling ground equipment.  A 
facility diagram that depicts the location of all bulk storage tanks, portable storage tanks, and oil-
filled equipment is located in Appendix A.  Table 2-1 details the type of oil and storage capacity 
of each container, and also identifies the type and capacity of secondary containment measures 
in place for each source.  The Plan also discusses the routine handling procedures and discharge 
prevention measures such as secondary containment and drainage controls. 
 

Facility Operator Facility Owner 
 Gagne & Son                                     Gagne & Son 

 28 Old Route 27 Road                       28 Old Route 27 Road 
 Belgrade, ME 04917                          Belgrade, ME 04917 
 Tel: 207- 495-3313                            Tel: 207-495-3313 
 
Section 1.2 General    Applicability (112.1) 
The facility has a total storage capacity of qualifying containers (≥55 gallons) that exceed the 
1,320-gallon threshold defined in 40 CFR Part 112.1 and therefore requires the preparation and 
implementation of an SPCC Plan.  A Site Plan of the facility with petroleum product storage 
locations is provided in Appendix A.  Table 2-1, located in Section 2, provides an inventory of 
the oil discussed in this section. 
 
Section 1.3 Qualified Facility Applicability (112.3(g)) 
Gagne does not meet the definition of a Qualified Facility due to the storage of greater than 10,000 
gallons of petroleum oils on site.  Gagne does not qualify for a Tier 1 SPCC Plan.  The facility is 
required to have the Plan certified by a professional engineer. 
 
Section 1.4 Facility Response Plan Applicability  
The facility has evaluated their ability to cause substantial harm to the environment utilizing the 
Flowchart of Criteria for Substantial Harm and the Certification of the Applicability of Substantial 
Harm Criteria as provided in Attachment C-1 and Attachment C-II of Appendix C of 40 CFR 112.  
The flowchart and certification are located in Appendix E of this Plan. 



  

JN:  11101.001 2-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 2 | GENERAL SPCC REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 2.1 Facilities and Procedures to be Implemented 40 CFR 112  
Other planned installations of facilities, procedures, methods, or equipment proposed but not yet 
fully operational will be discussed and/or included in Appendix F as necessary.  
   
Section 2.2 Conformance with 40 CFR 112 (112.7 (a)(1)) 
Gagne has prepared a SPCC Plan in accordance with the requirements in the applicable sections 
of 40 CFR 112.  The following sections detail how the facility conforms to these regulations. 
 
Section 2.3 Deviations, Nonconformance, or Alternative Measures (112.7(a)(2)) 
The facility has not deviated from the requirements of the rule.   
 
Section 2.4 Physical Facility Layout (112.7(a)(3))   
Physical facility layout is described in Section 1.1. 
 
Section 2.4.1 Oil Storage Containers (112.7(a)(3)(i))   
Storage of liquid petroleum products at Gagne & Son includes diesel fuel (on and off-road), gasoline, 
kerosene, lube oils, waste oil, and No. 2 heating oil.  Diesel fuel is stored outside in one 3,000-gallon 
tanker truck and five 10,000-gallon steel storage tanks.  Gasoline is also stored outside in a 1,000-
gallon welded steel storage tank.  No. 2 fuel is stored in 275-gallon and 330-gallon welded steel 
storage tanks throughout the site.  Kerosene is stored in a single 275-gallon tank on the roof of the 
old block plant.  Lube and waste oils are stored in the maintenance garage.  No underground storage 
tanks are utilized at this facility.   
  
The total volume of liquid petroleum products applicable to 40 CFR Part 112.1 and stored at the 
Gagne & Son facility is approximately 55,480 gallons.  The site has a total storage capacity of 
qualifying containers (55 gallons or greater) which exceed the 1,320-gallon threshold defined in 40 
CFR Part 112.1 and therefore requires the preparation and implementation of an SPCC Plan that 
covers the storage of all oil sources containing 55-gallons or more at the facility.  A Site Plan of the 
facility with petroleum product storage locations is provided in Appendix A.  Table 2-1 provides an 
inventory of the oil discussed in this section.



   

JN:  10085.003  2-2 2020 SPCC Plan 

TABLE 2-1 
GAGNE AND SON  

OIL STORAGE INVENTORY, POTENTIAL SPILL SOURCES, VOLUMES, RATES 
SOURCE 

ID LOCATION 
STORAGE 

DESCRIPTION/CONT
ENTS 

VOLUME 
(GAL.) 

 
TYPE OF 
FAILURE 

 
RATE 
(GPM) 

DIRECTION 
OF FLOW 

SECONDARY CONTAINMENT VOLUME 
(GAL)/ DESCRIPTION 

BULK STORAGE CONTAINERS-ABOVE GROUND STORAGE TANK (AST) 

AST #1 
East wall of the 

Retail Office 
basement 

Welded steel tank/No. 
2 Fuel 275 Rupture; 

Leakage 
 

<5 
 

East toward 
Route 27 

 
Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

AST #2  Parts Room Welded steel tank/No. 
2 Fuel 275 Rupture; 

Leakage 
 

<5 
Would remain 

in the parts 
room 

Room is recessed and concrete.  Provides 
approximately 1,250 gallons of containment. 

AST #3 Roof of old Block 
Plant 

Welded steel 
tank/Kerosene 275 Rupture; 

leakage <5 
South then east 
toward Route 

27 

Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

AST #4-#6 East side of 
Precast Bldg. 

Welded steel tank/No. 
2 Fuel 3 X 330 Rupture; 

leakage <6 East towards 
Route 27 

204 gallons of containment, will require 
additional containment  

AST #7  

 
Approximately 50’ 

south east of 
Precast Bldg. 

Welded Steel Tank 
/Gasoline 1,000 Rupture; 

Leakage <9 Northeast  Double-Walled AST 

AST #8-#10 

Approx. 100’ 
North of 

maintenance 
garage 

Welded Steel Tank 
/Waste Oil 3 X 275 Rupture; 

Leakage <5 Northeast Concrete, 1,444 gallon capacity 

AST #11 Maintenance 
Garage 

Welded Steel Tank 
/New Motor Oil 275 Rupture; 

Leakage <6 Northeast Double-Walled Roth Tank 



   

JN:  10085.003  2-3 2020 SPCC Plan 

SOURCE 
ID LOCATION 

STORAGE 
DESCRIPTION/CONT

ENTS 
VOLUME 

(GAL.) 

 
TYPE OF 
FAILURE 

 
RATE 
(GPM) 

DIRECTION 
OF FLOW 

SECONDARY CONTAINMENT VOLUME 
(GAL)/ DESCRIPTION 

AST #12 Maintenance 
Garage 

Welded Steel Tank 
/New Motor Oil 275 Rupture; 

Leakage <5 Northeast Double-Walled Roth Tank 

AST #13 Maintenance 
Garage 

Welded Steel Tank 
/Hydraulic 275 Rupture; 

Leakage <5 Northeast Double-Walled Roth Tank 

AST #14 Maintenance 
Garage 

Welded Steel Tank 
/Waste Oil 250 Rupture; 

Leakage <5 Northeast 
Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

AST #16 Bulk Plant Welded Steel Tank 
/Off-road Diesel 10,000 Rupture; 

Leakage <9 Northeast Concrete, 14,428 gallon capacity 

AST #17 Bulk Plant Welded Steel Tank /2 
Fuel 10,000 Rupture; 

Leakage <9 Northeast Concrete, 14,428 gallon capacity 

AST #18 Bulk Plant Welded Steel Tank / 2 
Fuel 10,000 Rupture; 

Leakage <9 Northeast Concrete, 14,428 gallon capacity 

AST #19 Bulk Plant Welded Steel Tank / 2 
Fuel 10,000 Rupture; 

Leakage <9 Northeast Concrete, 14,428 gallon capacity 

AST #20 Bulk Plant Welded Steel Tank / 2 
Fuel 10,000 Rupture; 

Leakage <9 Northeast Concrete, 14,428 gallon capacity 



   

JN:  10085.003  2-4 2020 SPCC Plan 

SOURCE 
ID LOCATION 

STORAGE 
DESCRIPTION/CONT

ENTS 
VOLUME 

(GAL.) 

 
TYPE OF 
FAILURE 

 
RATE 
(GPM) 

DIRECTION 
OF FLOW 

SECONDARY CONTAINMENT VOLUME 
(GAL)/ DESCRIPTION 

AST #21-#23 West side of New 
Block Plant 

Welded steel tank/No. 
2 Fuel 3 X 330 Rupture; 

leakage <6 

North from the 
building and 
west after 
exiting the 

building 

Concrete, 1,346 gallon capacity 

AST #25 
Outside 

Maintenance 
Garage 

Welded steel tank/No. 
2 Fuel 275 Rupture; 

Leakage <5 Northeast 
Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

AST #29 Adjacent to Old 
Bulk Plant 

Mobile Welded Steel 
Tanker Truck/Off-road 

Diesel 

3,000 
 

Rupture; 
Leakage <9 Variable  Active secondary containment measures 

BULK STORAGE CONTAINERS-PORTABLE STORAGE TANKS/CONTAINERS 

PST #1 Precast Building  HDPE Tote/ Q2 Form 
Release Agent 275 Rupture; 

Leakage 
<5 

Toward 
plugged 

drainage trough 

Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

PST #2 Precast Building HDPE Tote/ Q2 Form 
Release Agent 275 Rupture; 

Leakage 
<5 

Toward 
plugged 

drainage trough 

Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

PST #3 Precast Building HDPE Tote/ Q2 Form 
Release Agent 275 Rupture; 

Leakage 
<5 

Toward 
plugged 

drainage trough 

Will be provided with secondary containment 
adequate to prevent a discharge as described 
in 40 CFR 112.1(b) 

 



   

JN:  10085.003 2-5 2020 SPCC Plan 

Section 2.4.2 Discharge Prevention Measures & Product Handling (112.7(a)(3)(ii)) 
The facility has limited operations which involve the transfer of petroleum products to or from bulk 
storage tanks.  Transfer of product to fuel tanks is performed by the fuel supplier.  The forklift/front-
end loader operator refuels the vehicle from the 3,000-gallon diesel tanker truck.  Gagne transfers 
small volumes of motor oil and hydraulic fluid from 55-gallon drums to pails and other containers 
using a hand pump.  The oil is added to the equipment such as the ripsaw and moulder infeed 
hydraulic reservoirs using funnels. Spill kits are available to contain and clean up spills during 
these transfers.  Gagne performs similar operations when adding used oil to the used oil drums.  
When the drums are full, Gagne secures the drum caps then loads them onto a transport truck.  
The drums are loaded by forklift equipped with a drum grappler then secured to the transport 
vehicle before leaving the facility.  The vehicle is equipped with a spill kit when transporting used 
oil off-site. 
 
Tank trucks unloading product at the Gagne & Son Belgrade facility and personnel refueling 
equipment at the facility are required to do so at the designated loading/unloading areas (shown 
on Site Plan in Appendix A).  During unloading procedures, the delivery driver will be on hand to 
monitor the unloading procedures.  Necessary spill supplies, provided by the delivery company, 
shall be made readily available at the time of transfer so immediate response to a spill can be 
accomplished.  If a spill or overflow of the storage tank occurs or any other system upset is 
observed, unloading procedures will be halted and proper measures in accordance with Section 
2.4.4 of this Plan will be taken to prevent oil from reaching navigable waters. 
 
The following precautions shall be considered before, during, and after the unloading of a tank 
truck. 
 

1. When the transport truck arrives at the facility the fire extinguisher is removed from the 
truck and placed on the ground in a convenient location ready for immediate use before 
attempting to make any connections. 
 

2. The transport driver checks the contents in each compartment of the transport truck 
before any product is unloaded. 
 

3. The transport driver makes sure that the valves are set so that the product will be 
delivered into the proper tank.  He determines that the pipelines, valves, and other 
connections are tight and in good working order before starting the pump and 
occasionally during the pumping operation, to see that no leaks have developed in the 
lines or connections during pumping and that the tank is not overfilled.  Fuel deliveries 
only occur when facility personnel are on site. 
 

4. The fire extinguisher is placed back on the truck. 
 
The facility personnel utilize ASTs #7, #15, and #16 for fueling operational equipment and vehicles 
owned by Gagne & Son.  Only personnel who are familiar with this SPCC Plan and have been 
trained in accordance with Section 12 of this Plan are authorized to dispense fuel from these 
tanks.  Spill control equipment is readily available in the case of a spill.  Active secondary 
containment is provided with sufficient capacity to contain the magnitude of the most probable 
discharge.  Should a spill occur the source of the spill will be immediately isolated and appropriate 
notifications will be made.  The following procedure is used during fuel transfer: 
  



   

JN:  10085.003 2-6 2020 SPCC Plan 

1. Park equipment adjacent to the fuel tank to be used. 
 

2.  Shut off and secure the vehicle. 
 

3.  All equipment shall have workable fire extinguishers in the cab and all operators shall 
be trained in their proper use. 

 
4.  No Smoking will be allowed within 100 feet of the refueling operation. 

 
5.  All equipment operators will remain with the vehicle during refueling operations. 
 
6.  Any minor spills of fuels shall be quickly cleaned up with the proper absorbent     

material.  See Section 2.4.4. 
 

7.  Major spills of fuel shall be secured by means of berms and the proper Authorities 
notified.  See Table 2-2 and Section 2.5. 

 
8.  The amount and type of fuel used shall be recorded.  

 
Section 2.4.3 Discharge and Drainage Controls (112.7(a)(3)(iii)) 
The facility has provided adequate discharge and drainage controls through the implementation of 
this Plan.  The SPCC Site Plan shows the direction of flow for each area and the drainage system 
(valves, culverts, berms, etc.) at the facility. 
 
The facility has made provisions to protect all secondary containment structures from precipitation.  
 
Section 2.4.4 Countermeasures for Discharge (112.7(a)(3)(iv)) 
The facility has provided adequate means for the discovery, response, and cleanup of oil discharges 
through the implementation of its personnel training session and strategic placement of emergency 
spill response equipment including the use of biomass (sawdust) for oil spill cleanup.  All facility 
petroleum storage is located in areas visible during periods of normal operation at the facility.  Any 
visible evidence of leaks or discharge would be responded to immediately.  Facility personnel are 
trained on the facility’s emergency response procedures contained within this Plan.   
 
The person-in-charge of the facility or his designee shall take the following immediate actions. 
 

1. Identify the source of discharge as to type of product, grade, and probability of local 
containment. 
 

2. Make a preliminary assessment of the spill by the following criteria. 
 

Minor Spills - These are spills that can be contained by facility personnel without aid 
from other units or outside parties utilizing manpower and equipment locally available.  
All bulk storage containers at the facility utilize secondary containment which provides 
sufficient protection in preventing a spill from reaching navigable waters.  For this 
reason, it is likely that any spill that occurs at the facility would be considered a Minor 
Spill. 

  



   

JN:  10085.003 2-7 2020 SPCC Plan 

Major Spills - These are spills which escape beyond the local area or exceed the 
control capacity of facility personnel, thereby requiring the assistance of outside 
contractors specializing in oil spill clean-up, the local fire department, or a local 
cooperative oil spill organization.   These spills possess the possibility of affecting large 
water areas, shorelines, beaches, or other properties.  Major Spills at this facility would 
be an unlikely event due to secondary containment provisions employed at this facility. 

 
3. Minor Spill Action 
 

a. Survey the scene to identify the possibility of personal hazards. 
 

b. Attend to injured personnel. 
 

c. Immediately upon observing an oil spill, find the source and take any corrective 
action required to stop the flow (provided it is safe to do so), including, if necessary, 
shutting down any operations which are contributing to the spill. 
 

d. In case of any oil spill, notification should be made to at least one of the facility 
contacts listed in Table 2-2. 

e. Discharges of oil must also be reported to applicable Federal and/or State 
agencies in accordance with Section 2.5. 

f. If necessary, contain the spill through the deployment of containment devices or 
remove the discharge via use of absorbents. 

g. Proceed with recovery and clean-up measures using skimmers, vacuum pumps, 
absorbents, such as pads, sawdust or shavings, etc., as dictated by the conditions. 

h. Under most Minor Spill conditions, a minimum of 2 to 3 persons will be required 
for deployment of containment devices and to quickly and efficiently affect recovery 
operations. 

i. Adequate number of personnel on hand and their assignments must be a primary 
consideration of the on-scene Supervisor. 

j. As required, truck driver, and all other plant personnel on duty should be used to 
effect speedy containment and clean-up. 

k. Containment and cleanup activities must continue until Federal and/or State 
agency representatives concur that such activities may be discontinued. 

l. Dispose of removed discharge in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 
 

4. Major Spill Action 
 

a. Survey the scene to identify the possibility of personal hazards 
b. Attend to injured personnel 
c. Immediately upon observing an oil spill, find the source and take any corrective 

action required to stop the flow, including, if necessary, shutting down any 
operations which are contributing to the spill. 

 
d. In case of any oil spill, notification should be made to at least one of the facility 

contacts listed in Table 2-2. 
Discharges of oil must also be reported to applicable Federal and/or State 
agencies in accordance with Section 2.5. 

 
 
 



   

JN:  10085.003 2-8 2020 SPCC Plan 

e. Attempt to contain as much of the spill utilizing local containment devices for 
control of the discharge for subsequent removal. 

 
f. Major Spills or discharges require sufficient personnel not only for clean-up, but for 

containment and protection of critical areas as well. 
 

g. Special attention should be given to make certain that the following areas are 
adequately manned, and equipment is available.  

 
1. Adequate personnel and equipment to carry out containment and clean-up (a 

minimum of 6 to 8 personnel to handle, boom, truck trailers, pumps, boat, etc.). 
2. Adequate communication equipment and people for its operation. 
3. As required, Land, Water, and Air surveillance crews plus means of 

transportation. 
4. Trucks and drivers to pick up equipment and material. 
5. Oil and Hazardous Waste Spill Control Contractors.  Refer to Table 2-2 for a 

list of clean-up contractors. 
 

h. The person in charge will immediately assess the situation, giving particular 
attention to the following: 

 
1. Amount of spill. 
2. Type of product involved. 
3. Effectiveness of initial containment. 
4. Tide conditions and current velocities, if appropriate. 
5. Determine the probable volume and direction being taken by spilled material. 
6. Equipment on hand and immediately available for containment and protection. 
7. Adequate communication systems. 
8. Adequate number of personnel to cope with the situation. 
9. If necessary, provide for aerial and water surveillance. 

 
i. If the above assessment of the spill indicates a need for additional help, equipment 

or material, contact additional contractors as listed in Table 2-2. 
  



   

JN:  10085.003 2-9 2020 SPCC Plan 

j. Assign duties and responsibilities, where applicable, to most efficiently effect 
continued clean-up and protection of: 

 
 Critical Areas 
 1. Water intakes and outfalls 
 2. Wildlife areas 
 3. Beaches 
 4. Wetlands 
 5. Marinas 
 6. Other waterfront properties that might be affected and need protection. 

 
k. Disposal of removed discharge: 
 

1. If the recovered oil is reusable, pump into appropriate storage container. 
2. If not reusable, contract removal and disposal with an appropriate waste hauler 

and a Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facility. 
 

l. Containment and cleanup activities must continue until Federal and/or State 
agency representatives concur that such activities may be discontinued. 
 

Section 2.4.5 Disposal Methods (112.7(a)(3)(v)) 
The facility will likely rely upon a contracted response/cleanup contractor for oil spill removal and 
disposal of the product in the case of a major spill.  All disposal of oily debris will be approved by 
the MDEP.   
 
If a major release occurs at the site, a response/cleanup contractor shall be contacted 
immediately to manage the release as necessary.  Unless otherwise approved, all impacted 
material requiring removal shall be removed and disposed by the contracted contractor.  Contact 
information for potential response/cleanup contractors is located in the Facility Emergency 
Notification Information in Table 2-2. 
 
Section 2.4.6 Emergency Contact List (112.7(a)(3)(vi)) 
Table 2-2 provides a list of emergency contacts and phone numbers.   
 
  



   

JN:  10085.003 2-10 2020 SPCC Plan 

TABLE 2-2 EMERGENCY CONTACTS 
 

EMERGENCY 
 

ORGANIZATION/AGENCY 
 

EMERGENCY NO. 

Injury 
Ambulance 911 
Maine General Medical Center 1-207-621-4680 
Poison Control 1-800-442-6305 

Fire Fire Department 207-435-6323 / 911 

Police 
State Police Department 1-800-482-0730 
Local Police Department 911  
Kennebec County Sheriff’s Dept. 1-207-623-3614 

Oil Spill (Agency Contacts) 

National Response Center* 1-800-424-8802 
U.S. EPA Regional Office 617-223-7265 
Maine Department of Public Safety 
(Oil & Hazardous Materials) * 1-800-482-0777 

MDEP (Augusta) 1-207-287-7688 
Kennebec County Emergency 
Management Agency 1-207-623-8407 

State Emergency.  Response Comm. 1-800-452-8735 

Oil Spill (Gagne Internal) 
Shawn Boothby            
(Cell) 
(Work) 

1-207-495-5131 
1-800-339-3313 

Oil Spill (Cleanup Contractors) 
Clean Harbors 1-207-799-8111 
ENPRO 1-800-966-1102 

* Notification to these agencies is required.  Refer to Section 2.5. 



   

JN:  10085.003 2-11 2020 SPCC Plan 

Section 2.5 Spill Reporting (112.7(a)(4)) 
The following notification procedures should be used when an accidental discharge of oil has 
been identified at the facility. 
 
In case of any oil spill, immediately notify the following person-in-charge: 
 
 Shawn Boothby, Human Resource Coordinator 

 Work:  207-495-3313 
Cell:    207-496-5131 

 
If the person-in-charge is unavailable, notification should be made to at least one of the Gagne 
contacts listed in Section 2.4.6 and Table 2-2. 
 
In accordance with 40 CFR Part 110, the person in charge of a vessel or of an on-shore or off 
shore facility shall, as soon as he or she has knowledge of any discharges of oil that either violate 
applicable water quality standards or cause a film or sheen upon or discoloration of the surface 
of the water or adjoining shorelines of navigable waters of the US or cause a sludge or emulsion 
to be deposited beneath the surface of those waters or upon those adjoining shorelines shall 
immediately notify the National Response Center (NRC).  
 
In accordance with Maine Law 38 M.R.S.A. § 543 and § 550, any discharge of oil into or upon 
any coastal waters, estuaries, tidal flats, beaches and lands adjoining the seacoast of the State, 
or into or upon any lake, pond, river, stream, sewer, surface water drainage, ground water or other 
waters of the State or any public or private water supply or onto lands adjacent to, on, or over 
such waters of the State may be reported within 2 hours to avoid fines and civil penalties and 
promptly removed.  Reports must be made to the Maine Department of Public Safety (which will 
notify MDEP).  Refer to Table 2-2 for a list of emergency contacts and phone numbers.   

A blank form that should be used to report and record spills can be found at the end of this section.   
For each such spill event, a record will be maintained in Appendix D of this SPCC Plan.  The 
form enables a person reporting a discharge to relate information on the following:  
 

1. Facility location and phone number; 
2. date and time of discharge; 
3. type of material discharged; 
4. estimate of total quantity discharged; 
5. estimate of quantity discharge to navigable waters or adjoining shorelines in accordance 

with 40 CFR Part 110; 
6. the source of the discharge; 
7. a description of all affected media; 
8. the cause of the discharge; 
9. actions being used to stop, remove, and mitigate the effects of the discharge; 
10. whether an evacuation may be needed; and 
11. the names of individuals and/or organizations who have also been contacted. 
 

  



   

JN:  10085.003 2-12 2020 SPCC Plan 

If a facility has discharged more than 1,000 U.S. gallons of oil in a single discharge, or discharged 
more than 42 U.S. gallons of oil in each of two discharges occurring within any 12-month period, 
the facility must submit to the Regional Administrator within 60 days of the occurrence of such a 
discharge, the information prescribed in 40 CFR 112.4(a).  Non-compliance with this requirement 
can result in a civil penalty of up to $5,000/day.  
 
Section 2.6 Plan Organization/Emergency Response (112.7(a)(5)) 
Section 2.4 of this Plan covers the applicable response, reporting, and disposal procedures in 
the case of a discharge.  
 
 

Spill Notification Form 
  

Part A: Basic Spill Data 
 
Type of Spilled Substance: 

 
Notification Person: 

 
Quantity Released: 

 
Spill Date and Time: 

 
 Location of Spill:                       

 
Discovery Date and Time: 

 
 

 
Spill Duration: 

Facility Name & Location:  
Gagne and Son 
28 Old Route 27 Road 
Belgrade, Maine 04917 

Release to: [ ] air         [ ] water    [ ] ocean  
[ ] well        [ ] soil      [ ] sewer    
[ ] containment 
[ ] other____________________________ 

Owner / Company Name:                        
Gagne and Son 
28 Old Route 27 Road 
Belgrade, Maine 04917 

Telephone:  
Facility: (800) 339-3313 
24 hr.:   (207) 495-5131 

Cause of Spill: 
 
Nature of spill and any environmental or health effects: 
                                                                                                                             [ ] Injuries   [ ] Fatalities 
 
Part B: Notification Checklist 
 
Spill Type 

 
Notification Date and 
Time 

 
Name of Person that 
Received Call 

 
Spill is any amount of petroleum product: 
 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection 
1-800-482-0777  

 
 

 
 

 
Spill reaches groundwater or surface water: 
 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection 
1-800-482-0777 

 
 

 
 

 
National Response Center 
1-800-424-8802 

 
 

 
 

 



   

JN:  10085.003 3-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 3 | CONTAINMENT AND DISCHARGE PREDICTIONS 
 
Section 3.1  Spill Prediction and Direction (112.7(b)) 
In accordance with 40 CFR 112.7(b), it is reasonably possible that a spill event could occur as a 
result of a failure of one or more of the following systems: oil storage equipment; equipment 
components; or personnel actions.  Drainage is directed either south to the edge of the property 
boundary, or north to the opposite property boundary.  The Site Plan (Appendix A) indicates the 
outfall locations that would be affected by a spill from any of the oil storage areas.  The nearest 
downgradient water body is Messalonskee Lake, approximately 1.4 miles away.  Potential spill 
sources are presented in Table 3-1 below. 
 

Table 3-1: Potential Spill Scenarios 

SOURCE TYPE OF 
FAILURE 

TOTAL 
QUANTITY 

RATE OF 
FLOW 

CONTAINMENT / DIRECTION 
OF FLOW 

ABOVE GROUND STORAGE TANKS 

Storage Tank Human Error 
(Tank overfill) 20 gallons 40 gpm 

Fill bucket and Active Secondary 
Containment; North (Diesel 
Tank), South (Fuel Oil Tank) 

Storage Tank Rupture 
Total Capacity, 

Worst Case 
Discharge 

Instantaneous 
Interstices of Double Wall Tank; 

North (Diesel Tank), North or 
South (Fuel Oil Tank) 

Storage Tank Leakage Varies <1 gpm 
Interstices of Double Wall Tank; 

North (Diesel Tank), North or 
South (Fuel Oil Tank) 

OIL TRANSFER OPERATIONS 

Delivery Truck   
Unloading 

Human Error 
(Over-fill) 20 gallons 40 gpm 

Fuel Oil Tank Fill Bucket and 
Active Secondary Containment, 
North (Diesel Tank), South (Fuel 

Oil Tank) 

Routine Oil Transfer Human Error 
(Over-fill) <10 gallons <1 gpm 

Active Secondary Containment, 
North (Diesel Tank),  

Transfer Piping 
Outside Secondary 

Containment 

Leakage to 
Rupture <10 gallons <1 gpm 

Active Secondary Containment; 
South (Fuel Oil Tank)  

Use Oil, Motor Oil, 
and Hydraulic Oil 

Transfers 

Human Error 
(Over-fill) <10 gallons <1 gpm 

Active and Stationary 
Secondary Containment; 

 
 
  



   

JN:  10085.003 3-2 2020 SPCC Plan 

A typical small spill at the facility could be due human error, equipment malfunction, transfer 
operations or routine maintenance operations.  Small spills during business hours will be 
responded to immediately with active secondary containment materials (spill response 
equipment)).  Therefore, the potential for a spill to reach navigable water is unlikely.  
  
Section 3.2  Containment (112.7(c)) 
The facility is designed with containment structures for product storage, transfer, and handling 
areas where practicable.  The structures and systems are designed to contain released product 
from traveling beyond the property line and towards navigable water.  The facility provides 
sufficient secondary containment for its aboveground storage tanks, portable/mobile containers, 
transfers and off-loading areas.  
 
Aboveground Storage Tanks 
The fuel oil, gasoline, and diesel ASTs are either double-walled shop-built tanks or are located in 
concrete secondary containment structures that provide secondary containment capacity for the 
entire contents of each tank.  
 
A detailed description of each tank and containment area is provided in Table 2-1 of this Plan.  
 
Portable/Mobile Storage Containers 
The facility stores two to three 55-gallon drums in maintenance garage.  The drums are stored on 
a secondary containment pallet designed to contain the contents of at least 55-gallons as 
described in Table 2-1. 
 
The facility stores two 275-gallon plastic totes in the precast building, and 3,000 gallons of off-
road diesel in a mobile tanker truck which are provided with active secondary containment 
sufficient to meet the general secondary containment requirements of 40 CFR 112.7(c).   
 
Product Transfer Areas 
The facility has two fuel (fuel oil and diesel fuel) off-loading areas where product is transferred from 
tanker truck to a storage tank.  These transfer areas have active secondary containment measures 
with a containment capacity for the magnitude of the most probable discharge. 
 
Section 3.3 Impracticability of Containment (112.7(d)) 
The facility does not have any areas where secondary containment is determined to be 
impracticable.  The fuel ASTs are double-walled tanks which meet the secondary containment 
provisions of the SPCC rules by providing sufficient containment volume for at least 100 percent of 
the capacity of the largest tank.  
 
All off-load and transfer areas utilize active secondary containment measures sufficient to provide 
containment capacity for the magnitude of the most probable discharge. 
 



   

JN:  10085.003 4-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 4 | INSPECTION, TESTS, AND RECORDS 
 

Section 4.1 Tank Inspections (112.7(e)) 
For certain smaller shop-built containers, visual inspections alone will suffice as long as all sides 
of the container are visible (i.e., the container has no contact with the ground); the containers are 
inspected monthly; and subject to good engineering practices.  Visual inspections of certain 
smaller shop-built containers are acceptable because internal corrosion pose a minimal risk of 
failure.  According to the EPA Region 1 SPCC Enforcement Coordinator, smaller shop-built 
containers typically include tanks that are integral with the base of emergency generators, day 
tanks on generators and fire pumps (if 55 gallons or larger), and the plastic lined-double walled 
new 1,000 liter (Dehoust or Roth) tanks, and 275- and 330-gallon oval tanks with a minimum of 
12-gauge thickness.  All other containers must combine a visual inspection with another integrity 
testing technique that meets the requirements of the above paragraph.   
 
Visual Inspections Performed by Owner or Operator 
All aboveground storage tanks at the facility are observed by the facility personnel during 
operations.  Additionally, the Owner and/or Operator conduct formal visual inspections of all ASTs 
in accordance with the Steel Tank Institute (STI), Standard for Inspection of Aboveground Storage 
Tanks, SP001-5th Edition, a nationally recognized standard.  The frequency of the visual 
inspections is specified in the standard and occurs on a monthly basis.  Depending on the 
inspection parameter required by the SP001-5th Edition standard, monthly and yearly intervals will 
suffice.  All visual inspections are documented using the Visual Inspection Form which can be 
found at the end of this section.  Completed inspection forms are maintained at the facility. 
 
Certified Inspections Performed by Qualified Tank Inspector 
For those tanks at the facility requiring integrity testing, a certified API or STI above ground tank 
inspector to perform the necessary tank inspections can be retained.  Inspections will be 
conducted in accordance with API 653, Tank Inspection, Repair, and Alteration, or STI’s SP001-
4th Edition, Standard for Inspection of Aboveground Storage Tanks.  The tank inspections should 
be conducted in accordance with the appropriate inspection standard.  If, due to the location of 
the tank, a complete UT test cannot be performed some other method for testing the tanks 
integrity shall be performed.  The method used will be determined based on consultations with 
the certified inspector and non-destructive shell testing techniques available.  The facility must 
receive a statement from the certified inspector indicating the results of the inspection and the 
tanks are suitable for service.  All documentation related to the certified inspection will be 
maintained at the facility. 
 
Inspection Summary 
All Tanks and piping at the facility are observed by the facility personnel while conducting rounds 
during normal operating hours.  Formal inspections (visual) are conducted monthly to examine 
the exterior of all containers.  These inspections are documented using the report form which can 
be found at the end of this section.   

 
  



   

JN:  10085.003 4-2 2020 SPCC Plan 

TABLE 4-1: INSPECTION SCHEDULE 
 

 
EQUIPMENT 

 
INSPECTION PERIOD* 

 
TYPE OF 

INSPECTION 

 
INSPECTION 
PERSONNEL 

 
Above Ground Storage Tanks 

 
Monthly 

 
Visual 

 
Facility Personnel 

 
Above Ground Storage Tanks 

 
20 Years 

 
Formal 

External 
Inspection 

 
STI Certified 

Inspector 

 
Secondary Containment Structure 

 
Monthly 

 
Visual 

 
Facility Personnel 

 
Oil Filled Operational Equipment 

 
Monthly 

 
Visual 

 
Facility Personnel 

* Personnel observe equipment during normal operations on a daily basis and make repairs as necessary. 
 
All sides of these ASTs are currently visible and able to be inspected.  All tanks have been 
installed in accordance with good engineering practices.  Additionally, secondary containment 
has been provided for these tanks which are equivalent environmental protection.  If at any time, 
due to the installation of secondary containment structures, all sides of these tanks cannot be 
observed, a method of integrity testing technique will have to be combined with visual inspections. 
 
In accordance with STI standards, the 10,000-gallon diesel tanks are considered Category 1 
Tanks and a STI certified tank inspector will perform an external inspection at 20-year intervals. 
 
Section 4.2 Training (112.7(f)(1)) 
At the time of hire all new employees are required to be trained in accordance with facility training 
requirements.  All new hires involved in operation and maintenance of oil storage facilities are 
required to review and become familiar with this SPCC Plan.  All employees employed at the 
facility are trained in accordance with the scope and activity that they are to perform.  
 
Section 4.3 Designated Person Accountable for Spill Prevention (112.7(f)(2)) 
Mr. Shawn Boothby, HR Coordinator, is the designated person accountable for spill prevention at 
the facility.  
 
Section 4.4 Spill Prevention Briefings (112.7(f)(3)) 
The facility conducts annual spill prevention meetings for those personnel who are involved in oil 
handling at the facility.  This training is documented and maintained by Gagne’s Human Resource 
Coordinator, Shawn Boothby.  Additionally, all employees communicate on a daily basis and 
therefore any recent developments pertaining to the SPCC Plan, spill events, and/or malfunctions 
would be addressed on a daily basis. 
 
 
  
 



    

JN:  10085.003 4-3 2020 SPCC Plan 

GAGNE MILLWORKS 
MONTHLY OIL STORAGE INSPECTION 

  W
at

er
 in

 P
rim

ar
y 

Ta
nk

 
(d

ou
bl

e 
w

al
le

d 
Ta

nk
s)

, 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

C
on

ta
in

m
en

t, 
In

te
rs

tic
e,

 o
r s

pi
ll 

co
nt

ai
ne

r?
 

D
eb

ris
 o

r F
ire

 H
az

ar
d 

in
 

co
nt

ai
nm

en
t?

 

D
ra

in
 v

al
ve

s 
op

er
ab

le
 a

nd
 

in
 th

e 
cl

os
ed

 p
os

iti
on

? 

C
on

ta
in

m
en

t e
gr

es
s 

pa
th

w
ay

s 
cl

ea
r a

nd
 

ga
te

s/
do

or
s?

 

Vi
si

bl
e 

si
gn

s 
of

 le
ak

ag
e 

ar
ou

nd
 ta

nk
, c

on
cr

et
e 

pa
d,

 
co

nt
ai

nm
en

t, 
rin

gw
al

l, 
or

 
gr

ou
nd

? 

La
dd

er
 a

nd
 p

la
tfo

rm
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
se

cu
re

 w
ith

 n
o 

si
gn

 o
f s

ev
er

e 
co

rr
os

io
n 

or
 

da
m

ag
e?

 

Ta
nk

 li
qu

id
 le

ve
l g

au
ge

 
re

ad
ab

le
 a

nd
 in

 g
oo

d 
co

nd
iti

on
? 

A
ll 

Ta
nk

 o
pe

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 s

ea
le

d/
cl

os
ed

? 

A
re

 th
er

e 
ot

he
r c

on
di

tio
ns

 
th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 

fo
r c

on
tin

ue
d 

sa
fe

 
op

er
at

io
n 

or
 th

at
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 
th

e 
si

te
 S

PC
C

 p
la

n?
 

C
om

m
en

ts
, G

en
er

al
   

 T
an

k 
C

on
di

tio
n 

&
 A

pp
ea

ra
nc

e,
 

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

A
ct

io
n 

  D
at

e 
of

 C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

A
ct

io
n 

AST #1 – 275-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST                 
AST #2 – 275-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #3 – 275-Gallon Kerosene AST                 
AST #4 – 330-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #5 – 330-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #6 – 330-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #7 – 1,000-Gallon Gasoline AST            
AST #8 – 275-Gallon Waste Oil AST            
AST #9 – 275-Gallon Waste Oil AST            
AST #10 – 275-Gallon Waste Oil AST            
AST #11 – 275-Gallon New Motor Oil AST            
AST #12 – 275-Gallon New Motor Oil AST            
AST #13 – 275-Gallon Hydraulic Oil AST            
AST #14 – 250-Gallon Waste Oil AST            
AST #15 – 1,000-Gallon Off-Road Diesel AST            
AST #16 – 10,000-Gallon Off-Road Diesel AST            
AST #17 – 10,000-Gallon Off-Road Diesel AST            
AST #18 – 10,000-Gallon Off-Road Diesel AST            
AST #19 – 10,000-Gallon Off-Road Diesel AST            
AST #20 – 10,000-Gallon Off-Road Diesel AST            



    

JN:  10085.003 4-4 2020 SPCC Plan 

GAGNE MILLWORKS 
MONTHLY OIL STORAGE INSPECTION 

  W
at

er
 in

 P
rim

ar
y 

Ta
nk

 
(d

ou
bl

e 
w

al
le

d 
Ta

nk
s)

, 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

C
on

ta
in

m
en

t, 
In

te
rs

tic
e,

 o
r s

pi
ll 

co
nt

ai
ne

r?
 

D
eb

ris
 o

r F
ire

 H
az

ar
d 

in
 

co
nt

ai
nm

en
t?

 

D
ra

in
 v

al
ve

s 
op

er
ab

le
 a

nd
 

in
 th

e 
cl

os
ed

 p
os

iti
on

? 

C
on

ta
in

m
en

t e
gr

es
s 

pa
th

w
ay

s 
cl

ea
r a

nd
 

ga
te

s/
do

or
s?

 

Vi
si

bl
e 

si
gn

s 
of

 le
ak

ag
e 

ar
ou

nd
 ta

nk
, c

on
cr

et
e 

pa
d,

 
co

nt
ai

nm
en

t, 
rin

gw
al

l, 
or

 
gr

ou
nd

? 

La
dd

er
 a

nd
 p

la
tfo

rm
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
se

cu
re

 w
ith

 n
o 

si
gn

 o
f s

ev
er

e 
co

rr
os

io
n 

or
 

da
m

ag
e?

 

Ta
nk

 li
qu

id
 le

ve
l g

au
ge

 
re

ad
ab

le
 a

nd
 in

 g
oo

d 
co

nd
iti

on
? 

A
ll 

Ta
nk

 o
pe

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
pr

op
er

ly
 s

ea
le

d/
cl

os
ed

? 

A
re

 th
er

e 
ot

he
r c

on
di

tio
ns

 
th

at
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 

fo
r c

on
tin

ue
d 

sa
fe

 
op

er
at

io
n 

or
 th

at
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 
th

e 
si

te
 S

PC
C

 p
la

n?
 

C
om

m
en

ts
, G

en
er

al
   

 T
an

k 
C

on
di

tio
n 

&
 A

pp
ea

ra
nc

e,
 

C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

A
ct

io
n 

  D
at

e 
of

 C
or

re
ct

iv
e 

A
ct

io
n 

AST #21 – 330-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #22 – 330-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #23 – 330-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #24 – 275-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
AST #25 – 275-Gallon No. 2 Fuel Oil AST            
PST #1 – 275-Gallon Plastic Tote            
PST #2 – 275-Gallon Plastic Tote            

PST #3 – 55-Gallon Drums            



  

JN:  10085.003 4-4 2020 SPCC Plan 

ANNUAL FACILITY INSPECTION REPORT AND CHECKLIST 
 

 
DATE:                     INSPECTOR:                                               TIME:               TANK(S):                        
 
 

ITEM 
 
SYMBOL 

 
FREQUENCY 

 
COMMENTS 

TANK CONTAINMENT 
Containment structure in satisfactory 
condition?   

 
 

Drainage pipes/valves fit for continued 
service   

 
 

TANK FOUNDATIONS AND SUPPORTS 
Evidence of tank settlement or 
foundation washout?   

 
 

Cracking or spalling of concrete pad or 
ring wall? 

   
 

Tank Supports in Satisfactory 
condition?    

Water able to drain away from tank?    
Grounding strap secured and in good 
condition?    

CATHODIC PROTECTION 

CP system functional?   
 
 

Rectifier reading:   
 
 

TANK EXTERNAL COATING 

Evidence of paint failure?    

TANK SHELL/HEADS 

Noticeable shell/head distortions, 
buckling, denting, or bulging?   

 
 

Evidence of shell/head corrosion or 
cracking   

 
 

TANK MANWAYS, PIPING, AND EQUIPMENT WITHIN SECONDARY CONTAINMENT 
Flanged connection bolts tight and full 
engaged with no signs of wear or 
corrosion? 

  
 
 

TANK ROOF 

Standing water on roof?   
 
 

Evidence of coating cracking, crazing, 
peeling, blistering?   

 
 

Holes in roof?    

VENTING 
Vents free of obstructions?    
Emergency vent operable? Lift as 
required?    

  



  

JN:  10085.003 4-5 2020 SPCC Plan 

ANNUAL FACILITY INSPECTION REPORT AND CHECKLIST 
(Continued) 

 
 
DATE:                     INSPECTOR:                                               TIME:               TANK(S):                        
 
 

ITEM 
 
SYMBOL 

 
FREQUENCY 

 
COMMENTS 

INSULATED TANKS 
Insulation missing?    

Are there noticeable areas of 
moisture on the insulation? 

   

Mold on insulation?    

Insulation exhibiting damage?    

Is the insulation sufficiently 
protected from water intrusion? 

   

LEVEL AND OVERFILL PREVENTION INSTRUMENTATION OF SHOP-FABRICATED TANKS? 
Has the tank liquid level sensing 
device been tested to ensure 
proper operation? 

   

Does the tank liquid level sensing 
device operate as required? 

   

Are overfill prevention devices in 
proper working condition? 

   

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
Are tank grounding lines in good 
condition? 

   

Is electrical wiring for control 
boxes/lights in good condition? 

   

 
 
Authorized Signature:   Date:   
 
 Reports to be filed in Appendix D 
 
  



  

JN:  10085.003 4-6 2020 SPCC Plan 

ANNUAL SPILL PREVENTION BRIEFING 
 
Note:  New employees shall receive initial training in the contents and implementation of this 
SPCC plan upon start of their employment.  All employees shall receive annual refresher training 
in the contents and implementation of this SPCC plan. 
 

DATE OF 
TRAINING TOPICS COVERED NAMES OF EMPLOYEES 

ATTENDING INSTRUCTOR(S) 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 
Reports to be filed in Appendix D 



   

JN:  10085.003 6-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 5 | SECURITY (112.7(g)) 
 

Section 5.1 Access to Handling, Processing, or Storage  
All plants handling, processing, and storing oil should be fully fenced and entrance gates should 
be locked and/or guarded when the plant is not in production or is unattended.   
 
All sources of fuel oil are located inside the facility or within locking buildings.  The gasoline and 
diesel pumps are secured during non-operational hours.  All fuel dispensing equipment has the 
power shut off and is secured with a padlock.  Adequate lighting has been provided such that any 
person unauthorized to access the facility could be spotted.  The General Manager of the facility 
resides in immediate proximity to the site.  The security measures taken provide environmentally 
equivalent protection to fencing. 
 
Section 5.2 Secure Flow Valves 
The master flow and drain valves and any other valves that permit direct outward flow of the tank’s 
content to the surface should be securely locked in the closed position when in non-operating or 
non-standby status.   
 
All valves that permit direct outward flow of a tank’s contents are securely locked and/or in the 
closed position when in non-operating or non-standby status. 
 
Section 5.3  Secure Starter Controls 
The starter control on all oil pumps should be locked in the “off” position or located at a site 
accessible only to authorized personnel when the pumps are in a non-operating or non-standby 
status. 
 
As noted, pumping of the contents of ASTs #7, #15, and #16 are only conducted by authorized 
personnel during operational hours.  At the end of each day, each pump is padlocked, preventing 
any unauthorized discharge. 
  
Section 5.4  Pipeline Loading/Unloading Connection Securely Capped 
The loading/unloading connections of oil pipelines should be securely capped or blank-flanged 
when not in service or standby for extended time.  This security practice should also apply to 
pipelines that are emptied of liquid content either by draining or by inert gas pressure.   
 
All filler pipes are securely capped before and after any product is transferred to or from a tank. 
 
Section 5.5  Lighting 
Lighting is positioned at the facility to illuminate the outside fueling areas and provide adequate 
lighting to prevent acts of vandalism and assist in the discovery of oil discharges. 

  



   

JN:  10085.003 6-2 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 6 | FACILITY TANK TRUCK LOADING/UNLOADING OPERATIONS 
 
Loading/unloading rack is defined as a fixed structure (such as a platform, gangway) necessary 
for loading or unloading a tank truck or tank car, which is located at a facility subject to the 
requirements of 40 CFR 112.8(c).  A loading/unloading rack includes a loading or unloading arm 
and may include any combination of the following: piping assemblages, valves, pumps, shut-off 
devices, overfill sensors, or personnel safety devices.  Based on this definition, this section is not 
applicable to this facility. 
 
Section 6.1 Secondary Containment for Vehicles (112.7(h)(1)) 
Where loading/unloading, rack drainage does not flow into a catchment basin or treatment facility 
designed to handle discharges, use a quick drainage system for tank car or tank truck loading 
and unloading areas.  The containment system must be designed to hold at least maximum 
capacity of any single compartment of a tank car or tank truck loaded or unloaded at the facility. 
 
Since 40 CFR 112.7(h) (a facility tank car and tank truck loading/unloading rack) specifically 
addresses (loading/unloading racks) which is not defined in 40 CFR Part 112.2, Don Grant, SPCC 
Enforcement Coordinator of EPA Region 1, was contacted for an interpretation as what 
constitutes a (loading/unloading rack) and whether or not this section would apply to all 
loading/unloading areas.  Mr. Grant’s response was that the types of loading/unloading operations 
that occur at this facility (i.e., oil deliveries are into non-manifolded single bulk tanks and for intra-
facility use only, or are directly into facility equipment) do not constitute loading/unloading racks, 
and therefore, need only to meet the general secondary containment requirements of 112.7 and 
must provide containment sufficient to contain the magnitude of the most likely discharge.  
 
Gagne & Son does not currently operate the loading rack located on this site.  The facility provides 
active containment measures in all fuel transfer areas to contain the magnitude of the most likely 
discharge.  If the loading rack is put back into service, adequate secondary containment will be 
provided. 
 
Section 6.2 Warning or Barrier System for Vehicles (112.7(h)(2)) 
An interlocked warning light, physical barrier system, or warning signs must be provided in 
loading/unloading areas to prevent vehicular departure before completing disconnect of flexible 
fixed transfer lines. 
 
When the loading rack is placed back in service the facility shall post warning signs in the loading 
and unloading areas to remind personnel involved with fueling operations to disconnect transfer 
lines prior to departure from the facility.   
 
Section 6.3 Lowermost Drainage Inspection Outlets (112.7(h)(3)) 
Prior to filling and departure of any tank car or tank truck, the lowermost drain and all outlets of 
such vehicles should be closely examined for leakage, and, if necessary, tightened, adjusted, or 
replaced to prevent liquid leakage while in transit. 
 
Currently, filling of tank trucks does not occur at this facility, only filling of equipment and vehicles 
occur.  As noted, personnel involved in the fueling of facility equipment and vehicles are required 
to monitor for any leaking and discontinue fueling and respond as described in Section 4.  
 



   

JN:  10085.003 7-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 7 | BRITTLE FRACTURE EVALUATION 
 

Section 7.1 Brittle Fracture Evaluations (112.7(i)) 
The facility does not maintain any field constructed tanks on site. 

 



   

JN:  10085.003 8-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 8 | STATE RULES, REGULATIONS, AND GUIDELINES 
 
Section 8.1 Conformance with Applicable State Rules and Regulations (112.7(j)) 

APPLICABLE? MAINE LAW CITATION 

☒ Maine Fire Marshal’s Chapter 34 Rule, all spills from registered containers must be 
reported to the MDEP within 2 hours. 

☒ 

Maine Law 38 M.R.S.A. § 543, any discharge of oil into or upon any coastal waters, 
estuaries, tidal flats, beaches and lands adjoining the seacoast of the State, or into or 
upon any lake, pond, river, stream, sewer, surface water drainage, ground water or 
other waters of the State or any public or private water supply or onto lands adjacent 
to, on, or over such waters of the State is prohibited. 

☒ 

Maine Law 38 M.R.S.A § 550 a spill must be reported within 2 hours to avoid fines and 
civil penalties and promptly removed.  Reports must be made to the Maine Department 
of Public Safety (which will notify MDEP). Refer to Table 2-2 for a list of emergency 
contacts and phone numbers. 

☐ 

Maine Law 38 M.R.S.A. § 563 all motor fuel AST facilities with underground piping 
must register the facility with the MDEP.  Facilities must submit annual inspection 
reports of the piping and retrofit piping as necessary to meet the MDEP’s current 
standards for piping leak detection. 

☐ 
Maine Law 38 M.R.S.A. § 570-K, all underground piping associated with above ground 
storage tanks must be of cathodically protected steel, fiberglass, or other noncorrosive 
material approved by the MDEP. 

 



   

JN:  10085.003 9-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 9 | QUALIFIED OIL FILLED OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT 
 

Section 9.1 Qualified Oil-Filled Operational Equipment (112.7(k)(1)) 
The facility maintains qualified oil-filed operational equipment with capacities equal to or greater 
than 55-gallons.  
 
 Block Machine – AW 68 – 200 gal 
 RTS – AW 46 – 300 gal 
 Cuber – AW 46 – 200 gal 
 Splitter – AW 46 – 80 gal 
 
Section 9.2 Oil-Filled Equipment Inspection and Monitoring (112.7(k)(2)) 
The facility provides sufficient active secondary containment measures to meet the general 
secondary containment requirements of 40 CFR 112.7 (c) for qualified oil-filed operational 
equipment with capacities equal to or greater than 55-gallons.  
  



   

JN:  10085.003 10-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 10 | FACILITY DRAINAGE 
 
Section 10.1 Drainage from Diked Storage Areas (112.8(b)(1)) 
Drainage from diked storage areas must be restrained by valves to prevent a discharge from 
entering into the drainage system or facility effluent treatment system, except where facility 
systems are designed to control such discharge.  Dike areas may be emptied by pumps or 
ejectors that are manually activated, but not before the accumulation is examined for oil to ensure 
no oil will be discharged. 
 
All outdoor secondary containment structures are equipped with roofs to minimize the 
accumulation of precipitation. It is anticipated that drainage of the diked areas will not be 
necessary.  If it should become necessary, prior to draining any diked area, the drainage must be 
inspected for sheen or any other evidence of oil contamination.  For each drainage event, an entry 
must be made on the drainage discharge log and filed in Appendix D.  Refer to Section 10 for a 
copy of a blank Drainage Discharge Report Form.   
 
Section 10.2  Valves Used on Diked Area Storage (112.8(b)(2)) 
Valves used for the drainage of diked areas must be of manual, open-and-closed design. 
 
No secondary containment structures have valves or plugs. 
 
Section 10.3  Drainage Systems from Undiked Areas (112.8(b)(3)) 
Plant drainage systems from undiked areas (such as where piping is located outside containment 
walls or where tank truck discharges may occur outside the loading area) must be designed to 
flow into ponds, lagoons, or catchment basins designed to retain oil or return it to the facility.  
Catchment basins should not be located in areas subject to periodic flooding. 
 
Upon implementation of this Plan all storage tanks will be provided with adequate secondary 
containment; however, there are sources of piping located outside secondary containment.  
Piping located outside secondary containment is limited to copper fuel line piping connected to 
furnaces used to heat the facility.  Copper fuel piping from ASTs #1-#6 and #21-#23 is outside 
secondary containment structures.  All fuel lines outside secondary containment that are at a 
lower elevation than the top of the tank must be provided with a means of preventing the siphoning 
of the entire contents of the tank.  This will prevent the contents of tanks from draining outside 
secondary containment in the event of a fuel line failure.  This should be completed no later than 
6 months from the date this Plan is implemented.   
 
All dispenser pumps are continuously manned during fueling operations.  Any release from the 
piping would be recognized immediately.   
 
Section 10.4  Final Discharge of Drainage (112.8(b)(4)) 
If plant drainage is not engineered as described in Section 10.1 above, the final discharge of all 
in plant ditches must be equipped with a diversion system that would, in the event of an 
uncontrolled discharge, retain oil in the facility. 
As previously noted, all oil storage areas will have adequate secondary containment as described 
in Table 2-1. 
 
Section 10.5 Facility Drainage Systems and Equipment (112.8(b)(5)) 
Drainage waters are not treated at this facility.   
  
  



   

JN:  10085.003 10-2 2020 SPCC Plan 

DRAINAGE DISCHARGE REPORT FORM 
 
Facility Name: 
Operator Name: 
Containment Area: 

NAME DATE 
DISCHARGE 

CHECKED FOR 
SHEEN/PRODUCT 

DRAIN 
START 
TIME 

DRAIN 
END 
TIME 

OBSERVATION 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
 
 
 

Reports to be filed in Appendix D 
 

 



   

JN:  10085.003 11-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 11 | BULK STORAGE CONTAINERS 
 
Section 11.1 Tank Compatibility with its Contents (112.8(c)(1))  
All storage tanks and equipment containing oil are constructed such that they are compatible with 
their contents. 
 
Section 11.2 Secondary Containment Construction (112.8(c)(2)) 
The ASTs located outside are either double-walled shop-built tanks which are equipped to provide 
integral secondary or are located within a concrete secondary containment structure.  The 55-
gallon drums are located with secondary containment sufficiently impervious and capable of 
containing greater than 100% of the capacity of at least one container.  The manufacturer of the 
55-gallon drum spill containment pallet lists the storage capacity of the unit as 66 gallons.  All 
secondary containment structures which are proposed or currently exist are described in Table 
2-1 and Section 3.2.  
 
The secondary containment volume for the 55-gallon drums are provided in Table 2-1. 

 
Section 11.3 Diked Areas, Inspection and Drainage of Rainwater (112.8(c)(3)) 
Drainage of rainwater from the diked area into a storm drain or an effluent discharge that empties 
into an open water course, lake, or pond, and bypassing the in plant treatment system should not 
be allowed unless: 1) the bypass valve is normally sealed and closed; 2) inspection retained 
rainwater to ensure its presence will not cause a discharge as described in 112.1(b); 3) the bypass 
valve is opened and resealed following drainage under responsible supervision; and 4) adequate 
records are kept of such events. 
 
All drainage discharge points under normal operations are sealed and closed.  Prior to any 
discharge, the contents are inspected for a surface sheen or any other presence of oil 
contamination.  Provided no contamination is present, the drain plug is released, and the 
discharge is supervised by a responsible official.  Drainage records are kept by completing the 
Drainage Discharge Report Form (see Section 10 of this Plan) and filing the completed form in 
Appendix D of this Plan. 
 
Section 11.4 Corrosion of Buried Metallic Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(4)) 
This section is not applicable because there are no buried metallic storage tanks at this facility.  
 
Section 11.5 Corrosion Protection of Partially Buried or Bunkered Metallic Tanks 
(112.8(c)(5)) 
This section is not applicable because there are no partially buried or bunkered metallic storage 
tanks at this facility.  



   

JN:  10085.003 11-2 2020 SPCC Plan 

Section 11.6   Bulk Storage Container Integrity Testing (112.8(c)(6)) 
Each aboveground container must be tested for integrity on a regular schedule, and whenever 
material repairs are made.  The frequency and type of testing must take into account container 
size and design (such as floating roof, skid mounted, elevated, or partially buried).  Visual 
inspections must be combined with another testing technique such as hydrostatic testing, 
radiographic testing, ultrasonic testing, acoustic emissions testing, or another system of non-
destructive shell testing.  Containers supports and foundations must be inspected, and 
comparison records of all inspections must be kept.  In addition, the outside of the container must 
be inspected for signs of deterioration, discharges, or accumulation of oil inside the diked areas.  
Records of inspections and test kept under usual and customary business practices will suffice 
for the purposes of this paragraph.   
 
For those tanks requiring integrity testing, Gagne & Son will utilize a certified API or STI above 
ground tank inspector to perform the necessary tank inspections.  Inspections will be conducted 
in accordance with either API 653 Tank Inspection, Repair, and Alteration or STI’s SP001 4th 
Edition, Standard for Inspection of In-Service Shop Fabricated Aboveground Tanks for Storage 
and Combustible and Flammable Liquids.  At a minimum, the tank inspections should be 
conducted every 10 years beginning at the in service date of the tank, or less if necessary based 
on the corrosion rate of the tank and the testing should include an ultrasonic thickness (UT) test 
to evaluate the integrity of the tank and its suitability for service.  If, due to the location of the tank, 
a complete UT test cannot be performed some other method for testing the tanks integrity shall 
be performed.  The method used will be determined based on consultations with the certified 
inspector and non-destructive shell testing techniques available.  Gagne & Son must receive a 
statement from the certified inspector indicating the results of the inspection and the tanks suitable 
for service.  All documentation related to the certified inspection will be maintained in Appendix 
D of this Plan.   
 
ASTs #16 - #20 must combine visual inspection with a method of integrity testing every 10 years. 
 
Section 11.7 Control of Leakage through Internal Heating Coils (112.8(c)(7)) 
There are no internal heating coils present at this facility. 
 
Section 11.8 Tank Installation Fail-Safe Engineered (112.8(c)(8)) 
Each container installation must be engineered or updated in accordance with good engineering 
practices to avoid discharges.  One of the following devices must be provided:  
 
 1. High liquid level alarms with an audible or visual signal at a constantly manned operation 

or surveillance station (in smaller facilities an audible air vent may suffice). 
 

2. High liquid level pump cutoff devices set to stop flow at a predetermined container level. 
 
3. Direct audible or code signal communication between the container gauge and the 

pumping station. 
  



   

JN:  10085.003 11-3 2020 SPCC Plan 

4. A fast response system for determining the liquid level of each bulk storage tank such 
as digital computers, telepulse, or direct vision gauges.  If this option is utilized, a person 
must be present to monitor the gauges and the overall filling of bulk storage container. 

 
5. Liquid level sensing devices must be regularly tested and inspected to ensure proper 

operation. 
 
ASTs #1-#7, #11-#14,  #16, and #21-#23 are equipped with direct vision gauges.  In addition to 
direct vision gauges tanks of 500-gallons or less are equipped with audible over-fill vents.  The 
bulk plant tanks are equipped with an electronic alarm system to prevent overfills.  The system 
consists of warning lights and audible alarms.  The system is set to indicate when the tanks have 
reached 95% of capacity. 
  
Personnel are on hand to monitor any loading or unloading operations. Inspections are conducted 
monthly in accordance with the Monthly Facility Inspection Report, found in Section 5 of this Plan.  
Proper operation of gauges is included as part of these inspections. 
 
Section 11.9 Observation of Disposal Facilities for Effluent Discharge (112.8(c)(9)) 
Drainage to surface waters from areas where there is a potential for oil to be present only occurs 
under the direct supervision of a responsible official.  Section 10.1 outlines discharge inspection 
requirements prior to any discharge.  There are no “treatment systems” in place for the purpose 
of treating oil contaminated effluent.   
 
Section 11.10  Oil Leak Corrections from Tank Seams and Gaskets (112.8(c)(10)) 
Visible oil leaks from any source of oil are reported to the person in charge so they can be fixed 
immediately.  Measures are to be taken to minimize and mitigate the leak while awaiting repair.  
Any spilled oil is cleaned up by facility personnel immediately.  Oil spill cleanup supply locations 
are shown on the site sketch located in Appendix A.  All spill control equipment locations are 
marked, clearly visible, and discussed with facility personnel during SPCC training. 
 
Section 11.11   Appropriate Position of Mobile or Portable Oil Storage Tanks 
(112.8(c)(11)) 
The portable storage tanks (PSTs; 55-gallons drums) at the facility are provided with adequate 
secondary containment as discussed in Section 3.2 and identified in Table 2-1.  The form release 
totes will need to have adequate secondary containment measures provided.  
 
 



   

 
JN:  10085.003 12-1 2020 SPCC Plan 

SECTION 12 | FACILITY TRANSFER OPERATIONS 
 

Section 12.1 Buried Piping Installation Protection (112.8(d)(1)) 
There is no buried piping at facility.  All piping is aboveground. 
 
Section 12.2 Not-In-Service Terminal Connections (112.8(d)(2)) 
All transfer points are securely capped when not in service.   
 
Section 12.3 Pipe Supports Design (112.8(d)(3)) 
Where necessary, pipe supports at the facility are designed to minimize abrasion and corrosion 
and allow for expansion and contraction.   
 
Section 12.4 Aboveground Valve and Pipeline Examination (112.8(d)(4)) 
All aboveground valves, piping and appurtenances must be regularly inspected.  During the 
inspection an assessment of the general condition of items, such as flange joints, expansion 
joints, valve glands and bodies, catch pans, pipeline supports, locking valves, and metal surfaces 
must be conducted.  In addition, integrity and leak testing of buried piping at the time of installation, 
modification, construction, relocation, or replacement must be conducted.  
 
Inspections are conducted at the facility which includes inspecting those items outlined in the 
Facilities Inspection Report and Checklist located at the end of this section. 
 
Section 12.5  Aboveground Piping Protection from Vehicular Traffic (112.8(d)(5)) 
All piping is located in areas where vehicular traffic would not come into contact with piping.  If 
fueling operations are taking place, any person granted access to the facility is warned verbally 
to avoid the area where the specific fueling is occurring. 

  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

APPENDIX A 
 

LOCATION MAP AND SITE PLAN 



GRAVEL

PARKING

W

O

O

D

E

D

GRAVEL DRIVE

(GATED)

15" CMP

INV IN:

241.71'

15" CMP

INV OUT:

241.69'

15" RCP

INV IN:

243.09'

15" RCP

INV OUT:

242.58'

18" RCP

INV IN:

240.22'

18" RCP

INV OUT:

240.17'

EXISTING WETLANDS

EXISTING WETLANDS

EXISTING WETLANDS

EDGE OF SHRUBS

WOODED

W

O

O

D

E

D

W

O

O

D

E

D

GRAVEL

GRAVEL

PARKING

GRAVEL

BOX STORAGE

TRAILER (TYP)

BRUSH

WOODED

J

E

R

S

E

Y

 

B

A

R

R

I

E

R

S

LANDSCAPED

RETAINING WALL

GRAVEL

PILE

CONCRETE

RETAINING WALL

RAILROAD CAR

STORAGE TRAILERS

CONCRETE

RETAINING WALL

S

T

O

R

A

G

E

GRAVEL

CULVERT

INV IN: 256.94'

INV OUT: 256.61'

2
5
0

2
5
0

R

O

U

T

E

 
8

T

O

 
A

U

G

U

S

T

A

O

L

D

 

R

T

E

.

 

2

7

P

E

N

N

E

Y

 

R

O

A

D

OLD BLOCK

PLANT

2
5
5

2
5
0

D

R

I
V

E

A

C

C

E

S

S

 
R

O

A

D

2
4
5

2

4

5

2

4

5

2
4
6

2

4

7

248

249

2

5

0

2
5
0

2

5

0

2

5

1

2
5
1

2
5
1

2

5

2

252

2
5
2

2

5

3

2
5
3

2
5
3

2

5

4

254

2
5
4

2

5

5

255

2
5
5

2

5

5

2

5

6

256

2
5
6

2

5

6

2

5

6

2
5
7

257

2

5

7

2
5
7

2
5
8

2
5
8

2
5
8

2
5
9

259

2

5

9

2

5

9

2
5
9

2
6
0

2

6

0

2

6

0

260

260

2

6

0

2
6
0

2

6

0

2

6

0

2

6

1

2

6

1

261

2

6

1

2
6
1

2

6

1

2

6

2

2

6

2

262

2
6
2

2

6

2

2

6

3

263

2
6
3

2

6

3

2

6

4

2

6

4

2

6

4

2

6

4

2
6
4

2

6

5

2

6

5

2

6

5

2

6

5

2

6

5

2

6

5

2
6
5

266

2

6

6

2

6

6

2
6
6

267

2

6

7

2
6
7

268

2

6

8

2

6

8

2

6

9

269

2

6

9

2

7

0

2

7

0

2

7

0

270

2

7

1

2

7

1

2

7

1

2

7

2

2

7

2

2

7

3

2

7

3

2

7

4

2

7

4

2

7

4

2

7

5

2

7

5

2

7

5

2

7

5

2

7

6

2

7

6

2

7

6

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

7

2

7

8

2

7

8

2
7
8

2

7

8

2

7

8

2

7

9

2

7

9

2

7

9

2

7

9

2

7

9

2

7

9

2

8

0

2

8

0

2

8

0

2

8

0

2

8

0

2

8

1

2

8

1

2

8

1

2

8

2

2
8
2

2

8

3

2

8

3

2

8

4

2

8

4

2

8

5

2

8

5

2

8

6

2

8

7

2

8

8

2

8

9

2

8

9

2

8

9

2

9

0

2

9

0

2

9

0

2

9

1

2

9

1

2

9

2

2

9

2

2

9

3

2

9

3

2

9

4

2

9

5

BERM

EROSION

CONTROL BERM

VEGETATED

BUFFER

CONCRETE

BLOCK

MATERIAL

STORAGE

RIP RAP

CHANNEL

RIP RAP

CHANNEL

AGGREGATE

AREA

CONCRETE

STORAGE

AREA

CONCRETE

STORAGE

AREA

AGGREGATE

STORAGE

VEGETATED

BUFFER

CONCRETE

BLOCK

STORAGE

AREA

VEGETATED

BUFFER

VEGETATED

BUFFER

AGGREGATE

STORAGE

AREA

GRAVEL

ROAD

P

A

L

L

E

T

 
S

T

O

R

A

G

E

PALLET

STORAGE

WIRE

MESH

BLOCK PLANT BUILDING

PRODUCT

STORAGE

MINING

PRODUCT

STORAGE

H

O

M

E

 

P

R

O

D

U

C

T

S

B

U

I

L

D

I

N

G

AGGREGATE

PILE

AGGREGATE

STORAGE

PILE

AGGREGATE

STORAGE

AREA

M

A

T

E

R

I

A

L

S

T

O

R

A

G

E

O

F

F

S

I

T

E

R

U

N

O

F

F

O

F

F

S

I

T

E

 

R

U

N

O

F

F

RETAIL

OFFICE

VEHICLE

WASH AREA

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>

>

>

CONCRETE

BLOCK

STORAGE

AREA

RETENTION POND/

WATER SOURCE

W

O

O

D

E

D

LANDSCAPED

BUILDING CANOPY

SECURITY GATE

INERT

WASTE

MATERIAL

STORAGE

PRECAST

24" CMP

INV OUT

24" CMP

INV IN:

240.42'

MAINTENANCE

GARAGE

CRUSHER

LIGHT WEIGHT

SOIL

WASTE

OIL

MATERIAL

STORAGE

AREA

>

FINISHED PRODUCT

STORAGE AREA

>

>

>

STONE

DUST

MORTAR

SAND

CONCRETE

SAND

TRASH

DUMPSTERS

(3) 275 GALLON

WASTE OIL ASTS

VEGETATED

BUFFER

FUEL AREA

CONCRETE

BLOCK RETAINING

WALL

1,000 GALLON

GASOLINE AST

(FUEL AREA)

BLOCK

STORAGE

RIP RAP

MINING ACTIVITIES

PORTABLE

SCREEN

PORTABLE

SCREEN

FINISHED PRODUCT

STORAGE AREA

CONCRETE

WASHOUT

AREA

SCRAP METAL

ROLL-OFF

23

22

21

55 GAL. DRUM

STORAGE

29

16

17

18

19

20

1

7

3

PST-2

PST-3

PST-1

14

13

12

11

25

8
10

9

4

5

6

R

U

N

O

F

F

MINING ACTIVITIES

B
O

N
E

 
Y

A
R

D

N
O

 
D

I
S

C
H

A
R

G
E

 
(
I
N

F
I
L

T
R

A
T

E
S

)

> >

EDGE OF PAVEMENT

EXISTING 5 FOOT CONTOUR

EDGE OF GRAVEL

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

DRAINAGE DITCH

1. REFERENCE PLAN #04277 COMPLETED BY E.S. COFFIN

ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, DATED 2004, AT A SCALE OF

1"=100'.

2. ELEVATIONS ARE BASED ON AN ASSUMED VERTICAL DATUM.

EXISTING 1 FOOT CONTOUR

SCALE: 1"=2000'

USGS QUADRANGLE: BELGRADE SW

MAPTECH®  USGS TOPOGRAPHIC SERIES

TM

,

©MAPTECH®, INC. 978-933-3000

WWW.MAPTECH.COM/TOPO"

SITE

P
:
\
1
0
0
8
5
-
G

A
G

N
E

_
S

O
N

\
0
0
1
.
2
0
1
6
-
B

E
L
G

R
A

D
E

-
M

S
G

P
 
C

O
M

P
L
I
A

N
C

E
-
C

T
B

\
0
2
-
C

A
D

_
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

\
C

I
V

I
L
\
D

S
G

N
_
D

W
G

S
\
1
0
0
8
5
.
0
0
1
.
2
0
1
6
-
S

W
P

P
P

_
S

P
C

C
.
D

W
G

,
 
7
/
1
0
/
2
0
1
9
 
1
0
:
4
1
 
A

M

B
r
e
w

e
r

4
6
5
 
S

o
u
t
h
 
M

a
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

P
O

 
B

o
x
 
6
3
9

B
r
e
w

e
r
,
 
M

E

T
.
2
0
7
-
9
8
9
-
4
8
2
4

F
.
2
0
7
-
9
8
9
-
4
8
8
1

M
a
c
h
i
a
s

6
1
 
D

u
b
l
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

P
O

 
B

o
x
 
5
8
7

M
a
c
h
i
a
s
,
 
M

E

T
.
2
0
7
-
2
5
5
-
3
2
7
0

F
.
2
0
7
-
2
5
5
-
8
3
6
7

P
r
e
s
q
u
e
 
I
s
l
e

5
4
9
 
M

a
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

P
O

 
B

o
x
 
8
2
7

P
r
e
s
q
u
e
 
I
s
l
e
,
 
M

E

T
.
2
0
7
-
7
6
4
-
8
4
1
2

F
.
2
0
7
-
7
6
4
-
8
4
1
4

B
a
r
 
H

a
r
b
o
r

1
3
6
6
 
S

t
a
t
e
 
H

w
y
 
1
0
2

B
a
r
 
H

a
r
b
o
r
,
 
M

E

T
.
2
0
7
-
2
8
8
-
0
5
8
7

F
.
2
0
7
-
2
8
8
-
0
5
8
8

W
a
t
e
r
v
i
l
l
e

4
4
 
M

a
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

S
u
i
t
e
 
2
0
4

W
a
t
e
r
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
M

E

T
.
2
0
7
-
6
8
0
-
2
2
0
2

F
.
2
0
7
-
6
8
0
-
2
2
0
4

L
e
w

i
s
t
o
n

6
4
0
 
M

a
i
n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t

L
e
w

i
s
t
o
n
,
 
M

E

T
.
2
0
7
-
7
9
5
-
6
0
0
9

F
.
2
0
7
-
7
9
5
-
6
1
2
8

En
gin

ee
rs

En
vir

on
me

nta
l S

cie
nti

sts
Su

rve
yo

rs

G
A

G
N

E
 
&

 
S

O
N

 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
B

L
O

C
K

S
,
 
I
N

C

B
E

L
G

R
A

D
E

,
 
M

A
I
N

E

S
P

C
C

 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

1"=100'

2019-06-27

WAB JNP

10085.001.2016

1

SCALE: 1"=150'

BERM

1. ALL LOCATIONS AND AREAS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN

SHOULD BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE.

2. ACCORDING TO SITE PERSONNEL, THE SITE FEATURES AND

ACTIVITIES HAVE NOT CHANGED SINCE THIS LAST VISIT BY

CES ON DECEMBER 20, 2016.

3. ALL BUILDINGS, PAVED AREAS, GRAVEL ROADS, AND

GRAVEL OPERATIONAL AREAS ARE IMPERVIOUS AREAS.

SPCC SITE PLAN

FOR

GAGNE & SON

CONCRETE BLOCKS, INC

BELGRADE, MAINE

SOURCE

ID

TANK

TYPE

STORAGE

DESCRIPTION/

CONTENTS

VOLUME

(GALLONS)

1 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

275

2 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

275

3 AST Kerosene

275

4 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

330

5 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

330

6 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

330

7 AST Gasoline

500

8 AST Waste Oil

275

9 AST Waste Oil

275

10 AST Waste Oil

275

11 AST

New Engine Oil

275

12 AST

New Engine Oil

275

13 AST

Hydraulic Oil

275

14 AST Waste Oil

250

15 AST

Permanently Closed

500

16 AST
Highway Diesel

10,000

17 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil 10,000

18 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil 10,000

19 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil 10,000

20 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil 10,000

21 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

330

22 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

330

23 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

330

24 AST

Permanently Closed

275

25 AST No. 2 Fuel Oil

275

26 AST

Permanently Closed

275

27 AST

Permanently Closed

275

28 AST

Permanently Closed

275

29 AST Off-Road Diesel

3000

1 PST

Q-2 Form Release

Agent

275

2 PST

Q-2 Form Release

Agent

275

3 PST

Q-2 Form Release

Agent

275

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILER

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELGRADE BOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
380

AutoCAD SHX Text
379

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAGNETIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R1

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R3

AutoCAD SHX Text
R4

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
R5

AutoCAD SHX Text
R6

AutoCAD SHX Text
R7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN (SOUTHERN PORTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

APPENDIX B 
 

SECONDARY CONTAINMENT CALCULATIONS  
FOR DIKED STORAGE AREAS 

  
Refer to Table 2-1 for secondary containment volume calculations. 



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

APPENDIX C 
 

AID AGREEMENTS 
 
40 CFR Part 112.7(a)(3)(vi) requires the facility to list contractors with whom they have an 
agreement for response.  Table 2-2 lists contractors who can respond to a spill event.  The facility 
shall describe and document any response agreements in this Appendix.  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

APPENDIX D 
 

COMPLETED MONTHLY FACILITY INSPECTION REPORT AND CHECKLIST 
COMPLETED SPILL/LEAK REPORT FORMS 

COMPLETED SPILL PREVENTION TRAINING REPORTS 
COMPLETED ANNUAL SPILL PREVENTION BRIEFING REPORTS 

COMPLETED DRAINAGE DISCHARGE LOG 
  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

COMPLETED MONTHLY FACILITY INSPECTION 
REPORT AND CHECKLIST 



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

COMPLETED SPILL/LEAK REPORT FORMS  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

COMPLETED SPILL PREVENTION TRAINING REPORTS  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

 
COMPLETED ANNUAL SPILL PREVENTION BRIEFING REPORTSCOMPLETED   



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

DRAINAGE DISCHARGE REPORTS 



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

APPENDIX E 
 

APPLICABILITY OF SUBSTANTIAL HARM CRITERIA 
 



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

Certification of the Applicability of the Substantial Harm Criteria 

Facility Name: Gagne and Son  
Facility Address: 28 Old Route 27 Road 

1. Does the facility transfer oil over water to or from vessels and does the facility have a total oil 
storage capacity greater than or equal to 42,000 gallons? 

Yes ___      No   X          

2. Does the facility have a total oil storage capacity greater than or equal to 1 million gallons and 
does the facility lack secondary containment that is sufficiently large to contain the capacity of 
the largest aboveground oil storage tank plus sufficient freeboard to allow for precipitation within 
any aboveground oil storage tank area? 

Yes ___      No   X   

3. Does the facility have a total oil storage capacity greater than or equal to 1 million gallons and 
is the facility located at a distance (as calculated using the appropriate formula in Attachment 
C–III to this appendix or a comparable formula1) such that a discharge from the facility could 
cause injury to fish and wildlife and sensitive environments? For further description of fish and 
wildlife and sensitive environments, see Appendices I, II, and III to DOC/NOAA's “Guidance for 
Facility and Vessel Response Plans: Fish and Wildlife and Sensitive Environments” (see 
Appendix E to this part, section 13, for availability) and the applicable Area Contingency Plan. 

Yes ___      No   X   

4. Does the facility have a total oil storage capacity greater than or equal to 1 million gallons and 
is the facility located at a distance (as calculated using the appropriate formula in Attachment C-
III to this appendix or a comparable formula1) such that a discharge from the facility would shut 
down a public drinking water intake2 ? 

1 If a comparable formula is used, documentation of the reliability and analytical soundness of 
the comparable formula must be attached to this form. 

2 For the purposes of 40 CFR part 112, public drinking water intakes are analogous to public 
water systems as described at 40 CFR 143.2(c). 

Yes ___      No   X         

5. Does the facility have a total oil storage capacity greater than or equal to 1 million gallons and 
has the facility experienced a reportable oil discharge in an amount greater than or equal to 
10,000 gallons within the last 5 years? 

Yes ___      No   X   

  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

Certification 

I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined and am familiar with the information 
submitted in this document, and that based on my inquiry of those individuals responsible for 
obtaining this information, I believe that the submitted information is true, accurate, and complete. 

  
Signature 
  
Name (please type or print) 
  
Title 
  
Date



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

APPENDIX F 
 

FACILITY INSTALLATIONS AND IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE  
  



   

 
JN:  10085.003  2020 SPCC Plan 

Gagne and Sons must provide adequate secondary containment measures for the storage 
containers identified in Table 2-1 as having inadequate secondary containment.  This 
containment can be provided in the form of dikes constructed of sufficiently impervious materials 
or replacing tanks with new tanks of double walled construction. 





6 Gerald Terrace 
Fairfield, ME 04937 

 

(207) 872-8257 phone 
(207) 872-5882 fax 

 

 

E.S. Coffin Engineering 

432 Cony Road 

Chelsea, ME 04330 

 

 

June 28, 2021 

 

Mr. Jim Coffin, 

 

This letter confirms that Casella Waste is the current trash hauler for Gagne & Sons in all locations.  We 

currently service them on a weekly basis however, we have the capacity to handle any disposal increase as a 

result of their future expansion. 

 

Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions.   

 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Michelle Boucher 

Office Manager 

Casella Waste Systems, Inc. 

 

6 Gerald Terrace, Fairfield, Maine 04937 

p. 207.872.8257 | o. 207.614.9571| f. 207.872.5882 

 

 

 

 

Casella.com 













PROJ. NO.

T
O

W
N

:
C

O
U

N
T

Y
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 &

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

D
A

T
E

:
S

T
A

T
E

:

S
H

E
E

T
 T

IT
L

E
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

N
O

.
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

4
3

2
 C

o
n

y 
R

o
ad

  
P

.O
. 

B
o

x 
4

6
8

7
  

A
u

gu
st

a
, 

M
a

in
e 

 0
4

3
3

0
P

h
. 

(2
0

7
) 

6
2

3
-9

4
7

5
  

F
a

x 
(2

0
7

) 
6

2
3

-0
0

1
6

  
T

o
ll

 F
re

e 
1

-8
0

0
-2

4
4

-9
4

7
5

C

A-1
2017-257

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 P

L
A

N
T

G
A

G
N

E
 &

 S
O

N
, I

N
C

.

2
8

 O
L

D
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
7 

R
O

A
D

M
A

IN
E

3/
1

6"
=

1
'-0

"

M
A

Y
 1

1
, 2

01
8

C
S

C
B

E
M

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

LEGENDD O O R    S C H E D U L E PLAN  SUBMISSION NOTES



N

PROJ. NO.

T
O

W
N

:
C

O
U

N
T

Y
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 &

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

D
A

T
E

:
S

T
A

T
E

:

S
H

E
E

T
 T

IT
L

E
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

N
O

.
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

4
3

2
 C

o
n

y 
R

o
ad

  
P

.O
. 

B
o

x 
4

6
8

7
  

A
u

gu
st

a
, 

M
a

in
e 

 0
4

3
3

0
P

h
. 

(2
0

7
) 

6
2

3
-9

4
7

5
  

F
a

x 
(2

0
7

) 
6

2
3

-0
0

1
6

  
T

o
ll

 F
re

e 
1

-8
0

0
-2

4
4

-9
4

7
5

C

A-2
2017-257

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 P

L
A

N
T

G
A

G
N

E
 &

 S
O

N
, I

N
C

.

2
8

 O
L

D
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
7 

R
O

A
D

M
A

IN
E

3/
1

6"
=

1
'-0

"

M
A

Y
 1

1
, 2

01
8

C
S

C
B

E
M

F
IR

S
T

 F
L

O
O

R
 P

L
A

N

LEGEND



PROJ. NO.

T
O

W
N

:
C

O
U

N
T

Y
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 &

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

D
A

T
E

:
S

T
A

T
E

:

S
H

E
E

T
 T

IT
L

E
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

N
O

.
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

4
3

2
 C

o
n

y 
R

o
ad

  
P

.O
. 

B
o

x 
4

6
8

7
  

A
u

gu
st

a
, 

M
a

in
e 

 0
4

3
3

0
P

h
. 

(2
0

7
) 

6
2

3
-9

4
7

5
  

F
a

x 
(2

0
7

) 
6

2
3

-0
0

1
6

  
T

o
ll

 F
re

e 
1

-8
0

0
-2

4
4

-9
4

7
5

C

A-3
2017-257

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 P

L
A

N
T

G
A

G
N

E
 &

 S
O

N
, I

N
C

.

2
8

 O
L

D
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
7 

R
O

A
D

M
A

IN
E

1/
8

"=
1

'-0
"

M
A

Y
 1

1
, 2

01
8

C
S

C
B

E
M

E
A

S
T

 &
 W

E
S

T
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S



PROJ. NO.

T
O

W
N

:
C

O
U

N
T

Y
:

C
L

IE
N

T
 &

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
:

D
A

T
E

:
S

T
A

T
E

:

S
H

E
E

T
 T

IT
L

E
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

N
O

.
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

T
E

4
3

2
 C

o
n

y 
R

o
ad

  
P

.O
. 

B
o

x 
4

6
8

7
  

A
u

gu
st

a
, 

M
a

in
e 

 0
4

3
3

0
P

h
. 

(2
0

7
) 

6
2

3
-9

4
7

5
  

F
a

x 
(2

0
7

) 
6

2
3

-0
0

1
6

  
T

o
ll

 F
re

e 
1

-8
0

0
-2

4
4

-9
4

7
5

C

A-4
2017-257

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 P

L
A

N
T

G
A

G
N

E
 &

 S
O

N
, I

N
C

.

2
8

 O
L

D
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
7 

R
O

A
D

M
A

IN
E

3/
1

6"
=

1
'-0

"

M
A

Y
 1

1
, 2

01
8

C
S

C
B

E
M

N
O

R
T

H
 &

 S
O

U
T

H
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S









 

 

Memo 
To: Planning Board 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: July 15, 2021 

Re: Food trucks 

 

In the past week, concerns about food trucks located on commercial properties 

on Route 27 have been raised by a Selectboard member, the Roads Committee, 

an Appeals Board member and members of the Neighbors Helping Neighbors 

Facebook page. Code Enforcement Officer Gary Fuller and I are interested in 

your thoughts as we consider whether these ventures should be required to seek 

commercial permitting. 

My understanding is the Planning Board deferred when previously asked about 

permitting food trucks, determining that is beyond its purview. But a question has 

been raised whether these temporary operations constitute an additional or 

changed commercial use.  

One truck is located at the kayak shop, which predates the Commercial 

Development Review Ordinance. While the shop’s operations are grandfathered, 

a legitimate question could be raised whether this different and additional use 

should be permitted.  

The same question applies to the food vendors in the parking lot of the 

consignment shop occupying the former town office. The shop’s commercial 

permit does not address additional uses outside the shop. The owner told the 

CEO she would seek to amend her permit if required.  

Concerns have been raised about the trucks sitting in the state’s right-of-way and 

obstructing motorists’ sightlines. The CEO and I have driven through the 

intersection; we do not believe the trucks block drivers’ views. We have not 

noticed parking to be an issue, though it could be. The state transportation 

department would be responsible for policing its ROW. 

Two other food trucks in town sit on properties with uses that either predate the 

CDRO or are permitted.  

The CDRO excludes seasonal farm stands operating for no more than 6 months 

per year from commercial reviews. While the trucks are seasonal, and they do 

serve food, the CEO notes they are not farm stands. 

Again, your input would help shape our own thinking on the issue.  



JANET T. MILLS 
GOVERNOR 

AMANDA E. BEAL 
COMMISSIONER 

 

STATE OF MAINE 
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, CONSERVATION & FORESTRY 

177 STATE HOUSE STATION 
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333 

 
 

 
 
 
MOLLY DOCHERTY, DIRECTOR   
MAINE NATURAL AREAS PROGRAM  PHONE:  (207) 287-8044 
90 BLOSSOM LANE, DEERING BUILDING  WWW.MAINE.GOV/DACF/MNAP 
  

July 2, 2021 
 
James Coffin 
E.S. Coffin Engineering & Surveying 
PO Box 4687 
Augusta, ME 04330 
 
Via email: jcoffin@coffineng.com   
   
Re: Rare and exemplary botanical features in proximity to: #2017-257, Gagne & Sons Pre-Cast Plant, Map 4 Lot 
37, Belgrade, Maine 
 
Dear Mr. Coffin: 
  
I have searched the Maine Natural Areas Program’s Biological and Conservation Data System files in response to 
your request received June 17, 2021 for information on the presence of rare or unique botanical features 
documented from the vicinity of the project in Belgrade, Maine.  Rare and unique botanical features include the 
habitat of rare, threatened, or endangered plant species and unique or exemplary natural communities.  Our review 
involves examining maps, manual and computerized records, other sources of information such as scientific 
articles or published references, and the personal knowledge of staff or cooperating experts. 
 
Our official response covers only botanical features.  For authoritative information and official response for 
zoological features you must make a similar request to the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, 
284 State Street, Augusta, Maine 04333. 
 
According to the information currently in our Biological and Conservation Data System files, the southern-most 
area of the project intersects with an exemplary Kettlehole Bog-Pond Ecosystem at the Penney Pond Complex.  
These flat peatlands are usually deeper than wide and are formed from glacial deposits and melting buried ice 
blocks.  Large, high-quality examples such as this one at the Penney Pond Complex are uncommon in Maine and 
provide important habitat for a wide variety of plants and animals.  Peatlands are considered Wetlands of Special 
Significance (DEP Chapter 310), and as such, MNAP recommends avoiding disturbance within 250-feet of the 
mapped boundary of the Kettlehole Bog-Pond Ecosystem.  Additionally, MNAP recommends no clearing or other 
disturbance within at least 75-feet of all perennial and intermittent streams and other wetlands associated with this 
system.  MNAP understands that the new pre-cast plant will be erected within an existing laydown yard, in a 
currently developed area, and as such, MNAP has no concerns.  If activities are planned within 250-feet of the 
Kettlehole Bog-Pond Ecosystem or within 75-feet of streams or adjacent wetlands, please contact us with more 
details. 
 

Feature State 
Status 

State 
Rank 

Global 
Rank 

Occurrence 
Rank 

Site 

Kettlehole Bog-Pond 
Ecosystem N/A S4 GNR B 

Good Penney Pond Complex 

 

mailto:jcoffin@coffineng.com


Letter to Coffin 
Comments RE: Gagne & Sons, Belgrade 
July 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

 
If a field survey of the project area is conducted, please refer to the enclosed supplemental information regarding 
rare and exemplary botanical features documented to occur in the vicinity of the project site.  The list may include 
information on features that have been known to occur historically in the area as well as recently field-verified 
information.  While historic records have not been documented in several years, they may persist in the area if 
suitable habitat exists.  The enclosed list identifies features with potential to occur in the area, and it should be 
considered if you choose to conduct field surveys. 
 
This finding is available and appropriate for preparation and review of environmental assessments, but it is not a 
substitute for on-site surveys.  Comprehensive field surveys do not exist for all natural areas in Maine, and in the 
absence of a specific field investigation, the Maine Natural Areas Program cannot provide a definitive statement 
on the presence or absence of unusual natural features at this site. 
 
The Maine Natural Areas Program (MNAP) is continuously working to achieve a more comprehensive database 
of exemplary natural features in Maine.  We would appreciate the contribution of any information obtained should 
you decide to do field work.  MNAP welcomes coordination with individuals or organizations proposing 
environmental alteration or conducting environmental assessments.  If, however, data provided by MNAP are to 
be published in any form, the Program should be informed at the outset and credited as the source.   
 
The Maine Natural Areas Program has instituted a fee structure of $75.00 an hour to recover the actual cost of 
processing your request for information.  You will receive an invoice for $150.00 for two hours of our services. 
 
Thank you for using MNAP in the environmental review process.  Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have 
further questions about the Natural Areas Program or about rare or unique botanical features on this site. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

Lisa St. Hilaire 
 
Lisa St. Hilaire | Information Manager | Maine Natural Areas Program 
207-287-8044 | lisa.st.hilaire@maine.gov 

mailto:lisa.st.hilaire@maine.gov


Belgrade

Sidney

Kettlehole Bog-pond Ecosystem
USGS The National Map: National Boundaries Dataset, 3DEP Elevation Program,
Geographic Names Information System, National Hydrography Dataset, National
Land Cover Database, National Structures Dataset, and National Transportation
Dataset; USGS Global Ecosystems; U.S. Census Bureau TIGER/Line data; USFS
Road Data; Natural Earth Data; U.S. Department of State Humanitarian
Information Unit; and NOAA National Centers for Environmental Information, U.S.
Coastal Relief Model. Data refreshed May, 2020.

Approximate Project Location
Rare/Exemplary Natural Communtiy
Town

¹0 0.2 0.40.1 Miles

Gagne & Sons Pre-Cast Plant
Belgrade, Maine

Maine Natural Areas Program, June 2021



Adder's Tongue Fern

SC S1 G5 1924-07 8 Non-tidal rivershore (non-forested, seasonally wet),Open wetland, not 
coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland),Old field/roadside 
(non-forested, wetland or upland)

American Ginseng

E S3 G3G4 1907-07-28 18 Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)

American Lopseed

PE SH G5 1916-08 4 Non-tidal rivershore (non-forested, seasonally wet),Hardwood to mixed 
forest (forest, upland)

Awned Sedge

T S1 G5 2017-07-22 6 Coastal non-tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland)

Black Spruce Bog

<null> S4 G3G5 2000-10-13 9 Coastal non-tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland),Forested wetland

Bottlebrush Grass

SC S3 G5 1916-08-18 12 Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)

Dwarf Bulrush

T S1 G5 2016-09-01 6 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)

Fall Fimbry

SC S2S3 G5 2016-09-01 20 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)

Kettlehole Bog-pond Ecosystem

<null> S4 GNR 2000-10-13 4 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)

<null> S4 GNR 2000-10-13 5 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)

<null> S4 GNR 2013 2 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)

Leatherleaf Bog

<null> S4 G5 2000-10-13 8 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland),Coastal 
non-tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland)

State
Status

State
Rank

Global
Rank

Date Last
Observed

Occurrence
Number HabitatCommon Name

Rare and Exemplary Botanical Features within 4 miles of

Project: #2017-257, Gagne & Sons Pre-Cast Plant, Map 4 Lot 37, Belgrade, Maine

Page 1 of 2 www.maine.gov/dacf/mnapMaine Natural Areas Program



non-tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland)
<null> S4 G5 1997-09-16 9 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland),Coastal 

non-tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland)

Mountain Honeysuckle

E S2 G5 1975-pre 1 Dry barrens (partly forested, upland),Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, 
upland)

Raised Level Bog Ecosystem

<null> S4 GNR 2004 4 Forested wetland,Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore 
(non-forested, wetland)

Showy Lady's-slipper

SC S3 G4G5 1903-06 33 Forested wetland,Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore 
(non-forested, wetland)

SC S3 G4G5 1874-07-04 36 Forested wetland,Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore 
(non-forested, wetland)

Showy Orchis

E S1 G5 1915-08-12 12 Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)

Streamshore Ecosystem

<null> S4 GNR 1997-07-24 9 Non-tidal rivershore (non-forested, seasonally wet),Open wetland, not 
coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)

Tall Sedge Fen

<null> S4 G4G5 1997-07-24 6 Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland),Coastal 
non-tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland)

White Adder's-mouth

E S1 G5T4T5 1878-06 15 Forested wetland

Wild Chervil

PE SH G5 1916-08-18 3 Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)

State
Status

State
Rank

Global
Rank

Date Last
Observed

Occurrence
Number HabitatCommon Name

Rare and Exemplary Botanical Features within 4 miles of

Project: #2017-257, Gagne & Sons Pre-Cast Plant, Map 4 Lot 37, Belgrade, Maine

Page 2 of 2 www.maine.gov/dacf/mnapMaine Natural Areas Program



Conservation Status Ranks 

State and Global Ranks: This ranking system facilitates a quick assessment of a species’ or habitat type’s 
rarity and is the primary tool used to develop conservation, protection, and restoration priorities for 
individual species and natural habitat types. Each species or habitat is assigned both a state (S) and 
global (G) rank on a scale of 1 to 5. Factors such as range extent, the number of occurrences, intensity of 
threats, etc., contribute to the assignment of state and global ranks. The definitions for state and global 
ranks are comparable but applied at different geographic scales; something that is state imperiled may 
be globally secure. 

The information supporting these ranks is developed and maintained by the Maine Natural Areas 
Program (state ranks) and NatureServe (global ranks). 

Rank Definition 
S1 
G1 

Critically Imperiled – At very high risk of extinction or elimination due to very restricted 
range, very few populations or occurrences, very steep declines, very severe threats, or 
other factors. 

S2 
G2 

Imperiled – At high risk of extinction or elimination due to restricted range, few 
populations or occurrences, steep declines, severe threats, or other factors. 

S3 
G3 

Vulnerable – At moderate risk of extinction or elimination due to a fairly restricted range, 
relatively few populations or occurrences, recent and widespread declines, threats, or 
other factors. 

S4 
G4 

Apparently Secure – At fairly low risk of extinction or elimination due to an extensive 
range and/or many populations or occurrences, but with possible cause for some concern 
as a result of local recent declines, threats, or other factors. 

S5 
G5 

Secure – At very low risk or extinction or elimination due to a very extensive range, 
abundant populations or occurrences, and little to no concern from declines or threats. 

SX 
GX 

Presumed Extinct – Not located despite intensive searches and virtually no likelihood of 
rediscovery. 

SH 
GH 

Possibly Extinct – Known from only historical occurrences but still some hope of 
rediscovery. 

S#S# 
G#G# 

Range Rank – A numeric range rank (e.g., S2S3 or S1S3) is used to indicate any range of 
uncertainty about the status of the species or ecosystem.  

SU 
GU 

Unrankable – Currently unrankable due to lack of information or due to substantially 
conflicting information about status or trends. 

GNR 
SNR 

Unranked – Global or subnational conservation status not yet assessed. 

SNA 
GNA 

Not Applicable – A conservation status rank is not applicable because the species or 
ecosystem is not a suitable target for conservation activities (e.g., non-native species or 
ecosystems. 

Qualifier Definition 
S#? 
G#? 

Inexact Numeric Rank – Denotes inexact numeric rank. 

Q Questionable taxonomy that may reduce conservation priority – Distinctiveness of this 
entity as a taxon or ecosystem type at the current level is questionable. The “Q” modifier 
is only used at a global level. 

T# Infraspecific Taxon (trinomial) – The status of infraspecific taxa (subspecies or varieties) 
are indicated by a "T-rank" following the species’ global rank. 



State Status: Endangered and Threatened are legal status designations authorized by statute. Please 
refer to MRSA Title 12, §544 and §544-B. 

Status Definition 
E Endangered – Any native plant species in danger of extinction throughout all or a 

significant portion of its range within the State or Federally listed as Endangered. 
T Threatened – Any native plant species likely to become endangered within the 

foreseeable future throughout all or a significant portion of its range in the State or 
Federally listed as Threatened. 

SC Special Concern – A native plant species that is rare in the State, but not rare enough to 
be considered Threatened or Endangered. 

PE Potentially Extirpated – A native plant species that has not been documented in the State 
in over 20 years, or loss of the last known occurrence. 

 

Element Occurrence (EO) Ranks: Quality assessments that designate viability of a population or integrity 
of habitat. These ranks are based on size, condition, and landscape context. Range ranks (e.g., AB, BC) 
and uncertainty ranks (e.g., B?) are allowed. The Maine Natural Areas Program tracks all occurrences of 
rare plants and natural communities/ecosystems (S1-S3) as well as exemplary common natural 
community types (S4-S5 with EO ranks A/B). 

Rank Definition 
A Excellent – Excellent estimated viability/ecological integrity. 
B Good – Good estimated viability/ecological integrity. 
C Fair – Fair estimated viability/ecological integrity. 
D Poor – Poor estimated viability/ecological integrity. 
E Extant – Verified extant, but viability/ecological integrity not assessed. 
H Historical – Lack of field information within past 20 years verifying continued existence of 

the occurrence, but not enough to document extirpation. 
X Extirpated – Documented loss of population/destruction of habitat. 
U Unrankable – Occurrence unable to be ranked due to lack of sufficient information (e.g., 

possible mistaken identification). 
NR Not Ranked – An occurrence rank has not been assigned. 

 

Visit the Maine Natural Areas Program website for more information 
http://www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap 

 

http://www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap


QPR BK 13478 Page 321 INSTR#: 2020003468 

DLN: 1002040087529 

BK13478 PGS 321 - 324 02/19/2020 11 :53:00 AM 
INSTR#: 2020003468 ATTEST: BEVERLY BUSTIN-HATHEWAY 
RECEIVED KENNEBEC SS REGISTER OF DEEDS 
eRecorded Document 

QUITCLAIM DEED 
WITH COVENANT 

NO REAL ESTATE 
TRANSFER TAX PAID 

GAGNE REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC, a Maine limited liability company having a principal place of 
business in said Belgrade, Maine and a mailing address of 28 Old Route 27 Road, Belgrade, ME 
04917 ("Grantor") grant to GAGNE & SON CONCRETE BLOCKS, INC., a Maine corporation 
having a mailing address of 28 Old Route 27 Road, Belgrade, ME 04917, with quitclaim 
covenant, the real estate described as follows: 

A certain lot or parcel of land, with any buildings and improvements thereon, situated on the 
westerly side of Penney Road in the Town of Belgrade, County of Kennebec, and State of Maine 
shown on Exhibit B, Division of Tax Map 4, Lot 34 & 37 and Exhibit C, Division of Tax Map 4, Lot 
34 & 37 by Sebago Technlcs, Inc. (Project number 08534) dated January 31, 2020, attached 
hereto and incorporated herein, and being more particularly bounded and described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the westerly sideline of the Penney Road at the southeasterly corner of 
land formerly conveyed to Albert R Gagne by deed recorded In the Kennebec County Registry of 
Deeds ("KCRD") in Book 1511, page 213 and the northwesterly corner of land conveyed to Gagne 
Realty Holdings LLC by deed recorded in the KCRO at Book 7875, page 34; 

Thence approximately N 78° W along the northerly sideline of said Gagne Realty Holdings LLC, a 
distance of approximately 826 feet to a point; 

Thence N 10°-00'-00" E, through land of grantor, a distance of approximately 943 feet to the 
southerly sideline of Lot 115 per plan recorded in the KCRO at Plan book 3, page 13 and land now 
or formerly of Gagne & Son Concrete Blocks, Inc. by deed recorded in the KCRD at Book 3505, 
page 52; 

Thence S so• E approximately 19 feet along the southerly bound of said land now or former of Gagne & Son Concrete Blocks, Inc. to a point; 

Thence southwesterly along land now or formerly of Gagne & Son Concrete Blocks, Inc. a 
distance of 132 feet (8 rods); 

Thence southeasterly along land now or formerly of Gagne & Son Concrete Blocks, Inc. a distance of 165 feet (10 rods); 

Thence northwesterly along land now or formerly of Gagne & Son Concrete Blocks, Inc. a distance 
of 132 feet (8 rods) to the southerly sideline of Lot 115; 

16.5 acre p/o Belgrade Tax Map 4 Lot 34 



QPR BK 13478 Page 322 INSTR#: 2020003468 

Thence S 80° E, along the southerly sideline of Lot 115 and said land now or formerly of Gagne & 
Son Concrete Blocks, Inc., a distance of approximately 656 feet to the sideline of Penney Road; 

Thence southwesterly, then southerly, along the westerly sideline of Penney Road approximately 
998 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

The total area of the above-described parcel is approximately 16.5 acres. 

Bearings herein are based Grid North as shown on plan recorded in the KCRD at Plan book 
2009, page 28. 

Being a portion of the second parcel described in a deed from Linda M. Gagne and Alfred J. Gagne, 
Successor Co-Trustees under Declaration of Trust of Albert R. Gagne dated April 1, 1996, to Gagne 
Realty Holdings, LLC by deed dated September 10, 2009 and recorded In the Kennebec County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 10227, Page 208. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Albert P. Gagne, being duly authorized, has set 
his hand and seal this ["!¥ day of February, 2020. 

GAGNE REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC 

By: Albert P. Gagne 
Its: Manager 

STATE OF MAINE 
KENNEBEC, SS. 

Personally appeared before me this \~ day of February, 2020, the above-named Albert P. 
Gagne, in his said capacity as Manager of Gagne Realty Holdings, LLC, and acknowledged the 
foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in his said capacity and the free act and deed 
of said entity. 

~bfc 

Printed name: / O(,; Ltef:ft~mwte 

My Commission expires: 

16.5 acre p/o Belgrade Tax Map 4 Lot 34 

dwigh
Highlight



QPR BK 13478 Page 323 INSTR#: 2020003468 

I 

,,. -PAT.JACKSON/NC 
81( 477. PG 2711 
...,,. z ,or 9C 

I 

I 
I 

• 
' 

~22.8ACRES 

-PAT JACKSON fNC 
BK 38T2. PG T5 
,,..,,z.,or,o 

-

NF 
GAGNE REAL TY HOLDINGS LlC 

BK 78T5. PG 3() 
'"41'.t, L0T40 --

Sis-REBAR 
snPt..s2117 

---- ----
N/F 

GAGNE&SON 
CONCRETE BLOCKS INC. 

Bl<=PGsz 
MAP4. LOT3l' 

\ 

N,:, 51/r REBAR 
- ~ STIPI.S21'7 

,o~.,..Ja- - -

;:,,,.._ 

PROPOSEDCAMP.tOT 
OfVIS/ONUNE ----~ 

SNOWM08Jl.E ,,.. .. ----

11;,----, 
1 n~, LOCATIONSHOWN 

PERTAXMIIP 

I 
., I "TOP OF Hill" 

--,,.,JI /l/OTOE7ERMINEO 

'73 ACRES 11 / 1 
I
I II, G4GNEREAJ.rY 

HOt.DINGS lLC 

)) / !, BK 1/JZ2~ PG 208 
• {PARCB.2/ 

--.i11,

1
-.17~ -?_ -iii" 
\ --~ ......... 
\
'\ N/F -GAGNE REAJ.. TY HOUJiNGS LtC 

BK 7875, PG .U 
0853'Ltl.dwg, 1AB, LOT 34 & 37 B 

s=BAGO 
I" ........ . 

..._ __ "" -~ _,,,,_ .... ,. 
r • .a:i,~'ICCI 

r • 300' EXHIBIT B- DIVISION OF TAX MAP 4, LOT 34 & 37 sc.AI.E: 
OF CAMP LOT I-DA-TEc~-~~,~-,-'20-20--1 

LOCATION: 
OLD ROUTE 27 AOAO 

BELGRADE. MAINE 

FOR 
PETER GAGNE 

BELGRADE, MAINE 

S1££T: 

1 OF 1 

16.5 acre p/o Belgrade Tax Map 4 Lot 3t, 



QPR BK 13478 Page 324 

• 

INSTR#: 2020003468 

ACCESSANl) 
UTIUTY EASEMENT 

LMtE lillU.r•,11; DISU,NCE 

l• &.n·,ru·e. .tt.M 

lJ I ll'M'JII' I. I.U air 

l3 S».'05'3rE llll'-2' 

l..f 5ti.Xl'67'E U.W' 

ll H1r·s,3r1. 199n· 

~5 .. 41.ff•'l"E 111.f4' 

~ :::::~ :;;: 
lH ... k'll1'r I 4l,II' 
lt1 NtD·QQW! 1'a~· --- --------- c::i 

PROPOSED:,S' WIOE ~ ~ -ST/ Pl.S 2fll' 

ACCESS AND IRfLITY EASEMENT ~ f ... 
GA1F ~ ... 

HI !. 

I 
LOCA TIONS>/OWN 
PERTAX.t.MI' 
70POFHll...l.· 
NOT DETERMINED 

1 
I G<GYE/iE'ALTY 

HOUJINGSUC 

I . lllC 1/JZZT. pc, 208 i {P,4RCEJ. 2) 

PROPOSED 
.JITHIDE UTILITY EASEMENT 
CENTERED ON EX1SrwG 
C/"11./TY l.lNES-

k
~ MAP4. LOT34 

,.~ J I ~ ~ Ii.ii 

--N__• I ! fl;~ 
- - - :l-4..a,-- --

MAP 2. LOTtlJ.2 1. 5• NJOIIE ORADE 

G4GlliE' REM. 7YHOlillNGS UC - ..._ - - -... 
Bl< 11115. PG 34 Nlr RE/JAR 

~~ 

I 
I 

\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 

\ 

I 

\ 

\ 

TAB,LOT 

\ 

\ 

J7 C 

EXHIBIT C- DIVISION OF TAX MAP 4, LOT 34 & 37 1-=--' __ ,._. ""'.....,i 
OF CAMP LOT DATE; 

""'--.. -~ ---111'1•111 , .. ,,,.__ 
LOCATM)N: 

OLD ROUTE 21 ROAD 
BELGRADE. MAINE. 

16.S acre p/o 81::llgrode Tdx Map 4 Lol 34 

FOR: 
PETER GAGNE 

BEI.GRADE.w.JNE 

S1££T: 

113"2020 

1 OF 1 

Yellow goes to Gagne Realty Holdings

dwigh
Polygon

dwigh
Polygon

dwigh
Polygon











































































432 Cony Road                                                                                                                                                       (207) 623-9475  

P.O. Box 4687                                                                                                                                                 Fax (207) 623-0016 

Augusta, ME 04330                                                                                                                                               1-800-244-9475 

                                                                                                                                                

 

 

Professionals Delivering Quality Solutions 

 

 

July 29, 2021 
 
Town of Belgrade  
Mr. Gary Fuller 
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, ME 04917 
 
Subject:  Planning Board Concerns 
 
Dear Gary, 
At the planning board meeting on July 15th the planning board asked for answers to some 
items that were not clear to them.  Below is a list of these items with answers and 
supporting documentation for each one: 
 
1. Fire marshal approval for the 1,000 gallon propane tank: 

I was incorrect in believing that the tank needed fire marshal approval and have 
provided an email from Marc Veilleux supporting this. 
 

2. Plan C-0 had a scale of 1”=20’ on it. 
The scale has been fixed and is 1”=100’ on the attached C-0. 
 

3. Provide additional information regarding the dumpsters. 
A phot log is included depicting the two dumpsters and are shown on Sheet C-0. 
 

4. Provide a narrative in regard to public street access. 
A narrative is included describing the existing access onto Old Route 27. 
 

5. Provide information for the admixture being placed into the concrete mix. 
Two documents have been provided that address the admixture components. 
 

6. Form oil storage. 
A photograph has been provided that shows the tanks where the form oil is stored. 

 
This concludes our answers to planning board concerns and if you should have any 
questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
James E. Coffin, PE 





  

432 Cony Road, Augusta, Maine 04330, (207) 623-9475 

Prepared by: E.S. Coffin Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

  PHOTOGRAPHS 

Client Name:   

Gagne & Sons 

Project No.   

17-257 

Photo No. 1 
 

 

Date:  07-15-2021 
 
Site Location: 
Old Route 27 
Belgrade, Maine  
 

Description: 
Photo taken from the 
west side of Building 
#2 looking south at the 
two dumpsters. 

 

Photo No. 2  
 

 

Date:  07-15-2021 
 
Site Location: 
Old Route 27 
Belgrade, Maine  
 

Description: 
Photo taken from the 
southwest side of 
Building #2 looking 
north at the two 
dumpsters. 

 



  

432 Cony Road, Augusta, Maine 04330, (207) 623-9475 

Prepared by: E.S. Coffin Engineering & Surveying, Inc. 

  PHOTOGRAPHS 

Client Name:   

Gagne & Sons 

Project No.   

17-257 

Photo No. 3 
 

 

Date:  07-15-2021 
 
Site Location: 
Old Route 27 
Belgrade, Maine  
 

Description: 
Photo taken from the 
west side of Building 
#2 looking north at the 
cardboard dumpster. 

 

Photo No. 4  
 

 

Date:  07-15-2021 
 
Site Location: 
Old Route 27 
Belgrade, Maine  
 

Description: 
Photo taken from the 
west side of Building 
#2 looking east at the 
two dumpsters. 

 
 
 



432 Cony Road                                                                                                                                                       (207) 623-9475  

P.O. Box 4687                                                                                                                                                 Fax (207) 623-0016 

Augusta, ME 04330                                                                                                                                               1-800-244-9475 

                                                                                                                                                

 

 

Professionals Delivering Quality Solutions 

 

 

July 29, 2021 
 
Town of Belgrade 
Mr. Gary Fuller, CEO 
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, ME 04917 
 
Subject:  Public Street Standard 
 
Dear Gary, 
 
The planning board has requested a letter in regard to the Public Street Standard in 
Section 2 in Article 6 of the Land Use Ordinance.  This section deals with access onto 
public streets.  The proposed project will utilize the existing curb cut off Old Route 27 that 
has been in place at least since 2003.  This access point is at least 40’ in width, has 
adequate site distance and is shown on Sheet C-0.  This curb cut provides access to the 
west side of the property.  If you should have any questions or concerns, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
James E. Coffin, PE 

        





 

Page 1/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

43.2.2

* 1 Identification

Product identifier
Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

SDS ID Number: 1283
Replaces SDS ID Number:New

Relevant identified uses of the substance or mixture, and uses advised against
Specialty construction product. Not intended for other uses

Details of the supplier of the safety data sheet
Manufacturer/Supplier:
GCP Applied Technologies
62 Whittemore Avenue
Cambridge, MA 02140 USA

GCP Canada, Inc.
294 Clements Road W.
Ajax, Ontario L1S 3C6 Canada

Information department:

Environmental Health & Safety
USA: +1-617-876-1400 (24 hours)
          +1-800-354-5414 (8AM - 5PM) Not functional within Massachusetts
CAN: 1-905-683-8561 (24 hours)
Email address:  msds.gcp@gcpat.com

Transport Emergency: Chemtrec +1-800-424-9300 (24 hours)

* 2 Hazard(s) identification

Classification of the substance or mixture
May cause an allergic skin reaction.   

Label elements:
Hazard pictograms

d~
GHS07

Warning

Hazard statements
May cause an allergic skin reaction.
Precautionary statements
Avoid breathing dust/fume/gas/mist/vapors/spray
Wear protective gloves.
Contaminated work clothing should not be allowed out of the workplace.
IF ON SKIN: Wash with plenty of water.
If skin irritation or rash occurs: Get medical advice/attention.
Wash contaminated clothing before reuse.
Dispose of contents/container in accordance with local/regional/national/international regulations.

(Cont. on page 2)

 USGHS 



Page 2/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 1)

43.2.2

NFPA ratings (scale 0 - 4)

1
1

0
Health = 1
Fire = 1
Reactivity = 0

HMIS-ratings (scale 0 - 4)

  HEALTH

  FIRE

  REACTIVITY

*1

1

0

Health = *1
Flammability = 1
Reactivity = 0

Other hazards
Results of PBT and vPvB assessment

PBT: Not applicable.
vPvB: Not applicable.

* 3 Composition/information on ingredients

Chemical characterization: Mixture
Description: Mixture of the hazardous substance(s) listed below with additional nonhazardous ingredients.
Hazardous components:
26172-55-4 5-chloro-2-methyl-2H-isothiazol-3-one 0.0-0.1%

* 4 First-aid measures

Description of first aid measures
General information:

Get medical advice/attention if you feel unwell.

After inhalation:

Supply fresh air. If required, provide artificial respiration. Keep patient warm. Consult doctor if symptoms persist.

After skin contact:
Immediately wash contaminated skin with soap or mild detergent and water.  If this chemical soaks clothing, immediately remove
clothing and wash skin.

After eye contact:

Rinse opened eye for several minutes under running water.

Rinse cautiously with water for several minutes.

After swallowing:

Rinse mouth.

Do NOT induce vomiting.

Never give anything by mouth to an unconscious person.

Information for doctor:
Most important symptoms and effects, both acute and delayedMay cause sensitization by skin contact.

Indication of any immediate medical attention and special treatment neededNo further relevant information available.
 USGHS 

(Cont. on page 3)



Page 3/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 2)

43.2.2

* 5 Fire-fighting measures

Special hazards arising from the substance or mixture No further relevant information available.

Additional information Collect contaminated fire fighting water separately. It must not enter the sewage system.

6 Accidental release measures

Personal precautions, protective equipment and emergency procedures
Wear protective equipment. Keep unprotected persons away.

Methods and material for containment and cleaning up:
Contain and/or absorb spill with inert material (i.e. sand, vermiculite) then place in a suitable container.

Sweep up spilled product into receptacles.

Dispose contaminated material as waste according to section 13 of the SDS.

Reference to other sections
See Section 7 for information on safe handling.

See Section 8 for information on personal protection equipment.

See Section 13 for disposal information.

* 7 Handling and storage

Handling:
Precautions for safe handling

Open and handle receptacle with care.

Prevent formation of aerosols.
Avoid contact with eyes, skin and clothing. 
Do not take internally. 
Practice good personal hygiene to avoid ingestion. 
Use only with adequate ventilation. 
Wash clothing before reuse.  
FOR PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY. KEEP OUT OF CHILDREN'S REACH.

Information about protection against explosions and fires: No special measures required.

Conditions for safe storage, including any incompatibilities
Storage:

Information about storage in one common storage facility: No special measures required.

Further information about storage conditions:Keep receptacle tightly sealed.

Specific end use(s)No further relevant information available.

* 8 Exposure controls/personal protection

Additional information about design of technical systems:No further data; see item 7.

Control parameters
Components with limit values that require monitoring at the workplace:
The product does not contain any relevant quantities of materials with critical values that have to be monitored at the workplace.

Additional information: The lists that were valid during the creation were used as basis.
(Cont. on page 4)

 USGHS 



Page 4/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 3)

43.2.2

Exposure controls
Personal protective equipment:

General protective and hygienic measures:

Avoid contact with the eyes and skin.

The usual precautionary measures for handling chemicals should be followed.

Breathing equipment:

Control exposure to ingredients with workplace control parameters if mentioned above. If no ingredients are listed, respiratory
protection is generally not required.

If exposure limits are listed and may be exceeded, use approved respiratory protective equipment and filter type appropriate for
the listed ingredients. (NIOSH, CEN, etc.).

Protection of hands:
Gloves should be worn to prevent skin contact and should be impermeable and resistant to the product.
Rubber or other impervious gloves should be worn to prevent skin contact.

Material of glovesGloves should be worn to prevent skin contact and should be impermeable and resistant to the product.

Eye protection:

Safety glasses with side shield protection.

Safety glasses with side shields should be worn to prevent contact due to splashing.  Under high vapor mist concentrations, tightly
sealed goggles should be worn.

A face shield should also be worn if there is potential exposure to splash or spray.

Body protection:

Protective work clothing

Use personal protective equipment as required.

Take off contaminated clothing.

* 9 Physical and chemical properties

Information on basic physical and chemical properties
General Information
Appearance:

Form: Liquid
Color: blue/green

Odor: mild paint-like odor
Odor threshold: Not determined.

pH-value (~): 6 

Change in condition
Melting point/Melting range: 0 °C (32 °F)
Boiling point/Boiling range: 100 °C (212 °F)

Flash point: A flash point determination is unnecessary due to high water content.

Flammability (solid, gaseous): Not applicable.

Decomposition temperature: Not determined.
Auto igniting: Product is not selfigniting.

(Cont. on page 5)

 USGHS 



Page 5/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 4)

43.2.2

Danger of explosion: Product does not present an explosion hazard.

Explosion limits:
Lower: Not determined.
Upper: Not determined.
VOC Content (max): Not applicable.

Vapor pressure: <18 mm Hg
Density: (~) Not determined.
Relative density 1.08
Vapor density Not determined.
Evaporation rate Not determined.

Solubility in / Miscibility with
Water: Fully miscible.

Partition coefficient (n-octanol/water): Not determined.

Viscosity:
Dynamic at 25 °C (77 °F): <1000 cps (Brookfield)
Kinematic: Not determined.

Molecular weight Not applicable.

Other information No further relevant information available.

* 10 Stability and reactivity

Reactivity Stable under normal conditions.

Chemical stability

Thermal decomposition:No decomposition if used according to specifications.

Possibility of hazardous reactionsNo further relevant information available.

Conditions to avoidNo further relevant information available.

Incompatible materials: No further relevant information available.

Hazardous decomposition products:Carbon monoxide and carbon dioxide

Additional information: See section 7 for information on handling, storage and conditions to be avoided.

* 11 Toxicological information

Information on toxicological effects
Acute toxicity:

Primary irritant effect:

on the skin: No irritating effect expected

on the eye:No irritating effect expected

inhalation: No irritating effect expected

Sensitization:May cause an allergic skin reaction.

Additional toxicological information:

Carcinogenic categories
IARC (International Agency for Research on Cancer) Human Carcinogenicity:
Group 1- Positive, Group 2A- Probable, Group 2B- Possible, Group 3- Not Classifiable
None of the ingredients is listed.

(Cont. on page 6)

 USGHS 



Page 6/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 5)

43.2.2

NTP (National Toxicology Program)
K–Known to be carcinogenic, R–May reasonably be anticipated to be carcinogenic
None of the ingredients is listed.

OSHA-Ca (Occupational Safety & Health Administration)
None of the ingredients is listed.

* 12 Ecological information

Toxicity
Aquatic toxicity: No further relevant information available.

Persistence and degradabilityNo further relevant information available.

Behavior in environmental systems:
Bioaccumulative potentialNo further relevant information available.

Mobility in soil No further relevant information available.

Additional ecological information:
General notes:Do not allow undiluted product or large quantities of it to reach ground water, water course or sewage system.

Results of PBT and vPvB assessment
PBT: Not applicable.
vPvB: Not applicable.

Other adverse effectsNo further relevant information available.

* 13 Disposal considerations

Waste treatment methodsComply with Federal, State and local regulations.

Recommendation:

?I@HL Must not be disposed of together with household garbage. Do not allow product to reach sewage system.

Uncleaned packagings:
Recommendation:Disposal must be made according to official regulations.

* 14 Transport information

UN-Number
DOT, IMDG, IATA Not applicable.

UN proper shipping name
DOT, IMDG, IATA Not applicable.

Transport hazard class(es)
DOT, IMDG, IATA
Class Not applicable.

Packing group
DOT, IMDG, IATA Not applicable.

(Cont. on page 7)

 USGHS 



Page 7/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 6)

43.2.2

Environmental hazards:
Marine pollutant: No

Special precautions for user Not applicable.

Transport/Additional information: Not classified as a dangerous good for transport by road, rail or air.

DOT
Remarks: Not Regulated.

IMDG
Remarks: Not Regulated.
IATA
Remarks: Not Regulated.

UN "Model Regulation": Not applicable.

* 15 Regulatory information

SARA (Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act)
Section 302/304 (extremely hazardous substances):
None of the ingredients is listed.

Section 313 Reportable Ingredients (Chemicals present below reporting threshold are exempt):
None of the ingredients is listed.
SARA Section 312/Tier I & II Hazard Categories:Health Hazard - Respiratory or Skin Sensitization

North America Chemical Inventory Status
TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act - United States):
All ingredients are listed or exempt from listing unless otherwise noted below.

CEPA (Canadian DSL):
All ingredients are listed or exempt from listing unless otherwise noted below.

Right to Know Ingredient Disclosure:
Polyacrylate Trade Secret

7732-18-5 Water

California Proposition 65
Chemicals known to cause cancer:
None of the ingredients is listed.

Chemicals known to cause reproductive toxicity for females:
None of the ingredients is listed.

Chemicals known to cause reproductive toxicity for males:
None of the ingredients is listed.

Chemicals known to cause developmental toxicity:
None of the ingredients is listed.

Carcinogenicity Categories
EPA (Environmental Protection Agency)
None of the ingredients is listed.

TLV-ACGIH (THE American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists)
Human Carcinogen - A1 Confirmed, A2 Suspected, A3 Unknown Relevance, A4 Not Classifiable
None of the ingredients is listed.

NIOSH-Cancer (National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health)
None of the ingredients is listed.

(Cont. on page 8)

 USGHS 



Page 8/8

Safety Data Sheet
Printing date 10/18/2016 Reviewed on 10/18/2016Version Number 1.0

Trade name:ADVA CAST 575

(Cont. from page 7)

43.2.2

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) reported per the Emission Standards.
If no g/L value is provided this product is not subject to above standard.

* 16 Other information
The data included herein are presented in accordance with various environment, health and safety regulations.  It is the
responsibility of a recipient of the data to remain currently informed on chemical hazard information, to design and update its own
program and to comply with all national, federal, state and local laws and regulations applicable to safety, occupational health,
right-to-know and environmental protection.

Department issuing SDS:
GCP Applied Technologies
62 Whittemore Avenue
Cambridge, MA 02140 USA
USA:  +1-617-876-1400 (24 hours)
           +1-800-354-5414
Date of preparation / last revision10/18/2016 / -

The first date of preparation 03/22/2011

Number of revision times and the latest revision date 1.0 / 10/18/2016
 USGHS 



 

Page 1/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

42.0.9

* 1 Identification

Product identifier
Trade name: DAREX II AEA
SDS ID Number: 60059
Relevant identified uses of the substance or mixture, and uses advised against
Specialty construction product. Not intended for other uses

Details of the supplier of the safety data sheet
Manufacturer/Supplier:
GCP Applied Technologies
62 Whittemore Avenue
Cambridge, MA 02140 USA

GCP Canada, Inc.
294 Clements Road W.
Ajax, Ontario L1S 3C6 Canada
Information department:
In Canada: +1-905-683-8561
Environmental Health & Safety
USA: +1-617-876-1400 (24 hours)
          +1-800-354-5414 (8AM - 5PM) Not functional within Massachusetts
CAN: 1-905-683-8561 (24 hours)
Transport Emergency: Chemtrec +1-800-424-9300 (24 hours)

* 2 Hazard(s) identification

Classification of the substance or mixture
Causes serious eye irritation.   

Label elements:
Hazard pictograms


GHS07

Warning
Hazard statements
Causes serious eye irritation.
Precautionary statements
Wash thoroughly after handling.
Wear eye protection / face protection.
If in eyes: Rinse cautiously with water for several minutes. Remove contact lenses, if present and easy to do. Continue
rinsing.
If eye irritation persists: Get medical advice/attention.

(Cont. on page 2)
 USGHS 



Page 2/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA

(Cont. from page 1)

42.0.9

NFPA ratings (scale 0 - 4)

1
1

0

Health = 1
Fire = 1
Reactivity = 0

HMIS-ratings (scale 0 - 4)
  HEALTH

  FIRE

  REACTIVITY

2

1

0

Health = 2
Flammability = 1
Reactivity = 0

Other hazards
Results of PBT and vPvB assessment
PBT: Not applicable.
vPvB: Not applicable.

* 3 Composition/information on ingredients

Chemical characterization: Mixtures
Description:
Mixture of the substances listed below with additional nonhazardous ingredients.
Mixture of the substances listed below with additional nonhazardous ingredients.
Hazardous components:
61790-45-2 Fatty acids, tall-oil, sodium salt 2.0-5.0%
61790-44-1 Fatty acids, tall oil, potassium salts 2.0-5.0%

Additional information: For the wording of the listed hazard phrases refer to section 16.

* 4 First-aid measures

Description of first aid measures
General information:
Get medical advice/attention if you feel unwell.
After inhalation:
Supply fresh air. If required, provide artificial respiration. Keep patient warm. Consult doctor if symptoms persist.
After skin contact:
Immediately wash contaminated skin with soap or mild detergent and water.  If this chemical soaks clothing,
immediately remove clothing and wash skin.
After eye contact:
Rinse opened eye for several minutes under running water.
Rinse cautiously with water for several minutes.
Seek immediate medical advice.
After swallowing:
Wash out mouth with water
Rinse mouth.

(Cont. on page 3)
 USGHS 



Page 3/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA

(Cont. from page 2)

42.0.9

Do not induce vomiting; immediately call for medical help.
Never give anything by mouth to an unconscious person.

Information for doctor:
Most important symptoms and effects, both acute and delayed No further relevant information available.
Indication of any immediate medical attention and special treatment needed
No further relevant information available.

5 Fire-fighting measures

Special hazards arising from the substance or mixture No further relevant information available.

Additional information Collect contaminated fire fighting water separately. It must not enter the sewage system.

6 Accidental release measures

Personal precautions, protective equipment and emergency procedures
Wear protective equipment. Keep unprotected persons away.

Methods and material for containment and cleaning up:
Contain and/or absorb spill with inert material (i.e. sand, vermiculite) then place in a suitable container.
Sweep up spilled product into receptacles.
Dispose contaminated material as waste according to section 13 of the SDS.

Reference to other sections
See Section 7 for information on safe handling.
See Section 8 for information on personal protection equipment.
See Section 13 for disposal information.

* 7 Handling and storage

Handling:
Precautions for safe handling
Open and handle receptacle with care.
Avoid contact with eyes, skin and clothing. 
Do not take internally. 
Practice good personal hygiene to avoid ingestion. 
Use only with adequate ventilation. 
Wash clothing before reuse.  
FOR PROFESSIONAL USE ONLY. KEEP OUT OF CHILDREN'S REACH.
Information about protection against explosions and fires: No special measures required.

Conditions for safe storage, including any incompatibilities
Storage:
Information about storage in one common storage facility: No special measures required.
Further information about storage conditions: Keep receptacle tightly sealed.

(Cont. on page 4)
 USGHS 



Page 4/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA

(Cont. from page 3)

42.0.9

Specific end use(s) No further relevant information available.

* 8 Exposure controls/personal protection

Additional information about design of technical systems: No further data; see item 7.

Control parameters
Components with limit values that require monitoring at the workplace:
The product does not contain any relevant quantities of materials with critical values that have to be monitored at the
workplace.
Additional information: The lists that were valid during the creation were used as basis.

Exposure controls
Personal protective equipment:
General protective and hygienic measures:
Avoid contact with the eyes and skin.
The usual precautionary measures for handling chemicals should be followed.
Breathing equipment:
Respiratory protection is not normally required.  However, a chemical cartridge respirator with organic vapor
cartridge and a prefilter for dusts/mists is required at or above the applicable exposure limits (consult exposure
guidelines).  If no limits exist, use an approved respirator whenever a vapor or mist is generated or if respiratory
irritation occurs.  Supplied air respirator (SCBA) is required at exposure levels above the capabilities of a chemical
cartridge respirator.
Protection of hands:
Gloves should be worn to prevent skin contact and should be impermeable and resistant to the product.
Rubber or other impervious gloves should be worn to prevent skin contact.
Material of gloves
Gloves should be worn to prevent skin contact and should be impermeable and resistant to the product.
Eye protection:

Safety glasses with side shield protection.

Safety glasses with side shields should be worn to prevent contact due to splashing.  Under high vapor mist
concentrations, tightly sealed goggles should be worn.

A face shield should also be worn if there is potential exposure to splash or spray.

Body protection:
Protective work clothing
Use personal protective equipment as required.
Take off contaminated clothing.

 USGHS 
(Cont. on page 5)



Page 5/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA
(Cont. from page 4)

42.0.9

* 9 Physical and chemical properties

Information on basic physical and chemical properties
General Information
Appearance:

Form: Liquid
Color: According to product specification

Odor: Characteristic
Odor threshold: Not determined.
pH-value (~) at 20 °C (68 °F): 10
Change in condition

Melting point/Melting range: Undetermined.
Boiling point/Boiling range: Undetermined.

Flash point: Not applicable.
Flammability (solid, gaseous): Not applicable.
Decomposition temperature: Not determined.
Auto igniting: Product is not selfigniting.
Danger of explosion: Product does not present an explosion hazard.
Explosion limits:

Lower: Not determined.
Upper: Not determined.
VOC Content (max): Not determined.

Vapor pressure: Not determined.
Density: (~) at 20 °C (68 °F) 1 g/cm³ (8.345 lbs/gal)
Relative density Not determined.
Vapor density Not determined.
Evaporation rate Not determined.
Solubility in / Miscibility with

Water: Not miscible or difficult to mix.
Partition coefficient (n-octanol/water): Not determined.
Viscosity:

Dynamic: Not determined.
Kinematic: Not determined.

Molecular weight Not applicable.

Other information No further relevant information available.

* 10 Stability and reactivity

Reactivity Stable under normal conditions.
Chemical stability
Thermal decomposition: No decomposition if used according to specifications.

Conditions to avoid No further relevant information available.

Incompatible materials: No further relevant information available.

Hazardous decomposition products: Carbon monoxide and carbon dioxide

Additional information: See section 7 for information on handling, storage and conditions to be avoided.
 USGHS 

(Cont. on page 6)



Page 6/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA
(Cont. from page 5)

42.0.9

* 11 Toxicological information

Information on toxicological effects
Acute toxicity:
Primary irritant effect:
on the skin: No irritating effect expected
on the eye: Causes serious eye damage.
inhalation: No irritating effect expected
Ingestion:

Additional toxicological information:
Carcinogenic categories
IARC (International Agency for Research on Cancer) Human Carcinogenicity:
Group 1- Positive, Group 2A- Probable, Group 2B- Possible, Group 3- Not Classifiable
None of the ingredients is listed.
NTP (National Toxicology Program)
K–Known to be carcinogenic, R–May reasonably be anticipated to be carcinogenic
None of the ingredients is listed.
OSHA-Ca (Occupational Safety & Health Administration)
None of the ingredients is listed.

* 12 Ecological information

Toxicity
Aquatic toxicity: No further relevant information available.

Persistence and degradability No further relevant information available.

Behavior in environmental systems:
Bioaccumulative potential No further relevant information available.
Mobility in soil No further relevant information available.

Additional ecological information:
General notes: Not known to be hazardous to water.

Results of PBT and vPvB assessment
PBT: Not applicable.
vPvB: Not applicable.

Other adverse effects No further relevant information available.

13 Disposal considerations

Waste treatment methods Comply with Federal, State and local regulations.
(Cont. on page 7)

 USGHS 



Page 7/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA

(Cont. from page 6)

42.0.9

Recommendation:

 Must not be disposed of together with household garbage. Do not allow product to reach sewage system.

Uncleaned packagings:
Recommendation: Disposal must be made according to official regulations.

* 14 Transport information

UN-Number
DOT, ADR, ADN, IMDG, IATA Not applicable.

UN proper shipping name
DOT, ADR, ADN, IMDG, IATA Not applicable.

Transport hazard class(es)
DOT, ADR, ADN, IMDG, IATA
Class Not applicable.

Packing group
DOT, ADR, IMDG, IATA Not applicable.

Environmental hazards:
Marine pollutant: No

Special precautions for user Not applicable.

Transport/Additional information: Not classified as a dangerous good for transport by road, rail or air.
DOT
Remarks: Not Regulated.

UN "Model Regulation": Not applicable.

* 15 Regulatory information
SARA (Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act)
Section 302/304 (extremely hazardous substances):
None of the ingredients is listed.
Section 313 Reportable Ingredients (Chemicals present below reporting threshold are exempt):
None of the ingredients is listed.
SARA Section 312/Tier I & II Hazard Categories:
          Health Delayed (chronic)                     No
          Flammable                                           No
          Reactive                                               No
          Pressure                                               No
          Health Immediate (acute)                    Yes
North America Chemical Inventory Status
TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act - United States):
All ingredients are listed or exempt from listing unless otherwise noted below.

(Cont. on page 8)
 USGHS 



Page 8/8
Safety Data Sheet

Printing date 02/18/2016 Reviewed on 02/18/2016Version Number 1.2

Trade name: DAREX II AEA

(Cont. from page 7)

42.0.9

CEPA (Canadian DSL):
All ingredients are listed or exempt from listing unless otherwise noted below.
Right to Know Ingredient Disclosure
8002-26-4 Tall Oil
7732-18-5 Water

California Proposition 65
Chemicals known to cause cancer:
None of the ingredients is listed.
Chemicals known to cause reproductive toxicity for females:
None of the ingredients is listed.
Chemicals known to cause reproductive toxicity for males:
None of the ingredients is listed.
Chemicals known to cause developmental toxicity:
67-56-1 Methanol

Carcinogenicity Categories
EPA (Environmental Protection Agency)
None of the ingredients is listed.
TLV-ACGIH (THE American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists)
Human Carcinogen - A1 Confirmed, A2 Suspected, A3 Unknown Relevance, A4 Not Classifiable
None of the ingredients is listed.
NIOSH-Cancer (National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health)
None of the ingredients is listed.
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) reported per the Emission Standards.
If no g/L value is provided this product is not subject to above standard.

* 16 Other information
The data included herein are presented in accordance with various environment, health and safety regulations.  It is
the responsibility of a recipient of the data to remain currently informed on chemical hazard information, to design
and update its own program and to comply with all national, federal, state and local laws and regulations applicable to
safety, occupational health, right-to-know and environmental protection.

Department issuing SDS:
GCP Applied Technologies
62 Whittemore Avenue
Cambridge, MA 02140 USA
USA:  +1-617-876-1400 (24 hours)
           +1-800-354-5414
Date of preparation / last revision 02/18/2016 / 1.1
The first date of preparation 04/05/2013
Number of revision times and the latest revision date 1.2 / 02/18/2016

 USGHS 









From: Anthony Wilson
To: deputyclerk; Gary Fuller
Cc: Peter Rushton; perushton@roadrunner.com; George Seel
Subject: FW: CDRO vegetative screening guidance/examples
Date: Friday, June 11, 2021 7:41:09 AM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Sheila, let’s please put this on the Planning Board’s July 1 agenda.
 

Anthony Wilson
Town Manager
Town of Belgrade

Office: 207-495-2258
Cell: 207-592-6031 

Town Office
990 Augusta Road
Belgrade, ME 04917

townofbelgrade.com

 
 
 

From: Peter Rushton <perushton@roadrunner.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2021 4:31 PM
To: 'George Seel' <georgeseel@outlook.com>; 'Peter Rushton' <perushton@gmail.com>;
'peter.rushton@maine.gov <peter.rushton@maine.gov>' <Peter.Rushton@maine.gov>; Gary Fuller
<ceo@townofbelgrade.com>; Anthony Wilson <townmanager@townofbelgrade.com>; deputyclerk
<deputyclerk@townofbelgrade.com>
Subject: RE: CDRO vegetative screening guidance/examples
 
EXTERNAL MESSAGE:
Hi George,
 
I think it looks fantastic! I like the idea to provide any citizen of Belgrade with a visual tool to help
explain a situation. If it can make it easier to understand, then it is worthwhile.
 
No changes from me.
 
Let’s take the next step and get this on an upcoming agenda so the full board can review it and act
upon it.
 
Thanks,
 
Peter

mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:deputyclerk@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:ceo@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user292da846
mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
http://townofbelgrade.com/
https://www.facebook.com/belgrademaine
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCoUrhrT_jgot3vqnyFOuBYA/videos




 

From: George Seel <georgeseel@outlook.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 9, 2021 2:31 PM
To: Peter Rushton <perushton@gmail.com>; Peter Rushton <perushton@roadrunner.com>;
peter.rushton@maine.gov <peter.rushton@maine.gov> <Peter.Rushton@maine.gov>; Gary Fuller
<ceo@townofbelgrade.com>; Anthony Wilson <townmanager@townofbelgrade.com>; deputyclerk
<deputyclerk@townofbelgrade.com>
Subject: CDRO vegetative screening guidance/examples
 
Peter,
 
Attached is my first cut on schematics along with accompanying written specs from the ordinance to
provide guidance to applicants on what is expected to meet the most common of the CDRO
vegetative screening standards.  I did electronically in Powerpoint so can more easily be stored and
reproduced once finalized vs. the hand drawn earlier version (and less likely lost to time).  I added
the pubic ROW as Rich suggested and a version for in the Village Districts as you suggested.  I did not
receive feedback from any  other Board members.  Once finalized and approved, maybe someone
smarter than I can convert directly to a PDF.  In the mean time I scanned to a PDF to allow for those
without Powerpoint software to easily open.
 
Let me know what you think and if you want any changes.  Once meets your satisfaction, how do you
wish to proceed to bring to the full Board for approval and ultimately including into the CDRO
application packet provided applicants?  Place on agenda of future meeting?
 
George
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:perushton@roadrunner.com
mailto:peter.rushton@maine.gov
mailto:peter.rushton@maine.gov
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
mailto:ceo@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:deputyclerk@townofbelgrade.com
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


From: George Seel
To: Richard Baker
Cc: Anthony Wilson; crgsnbe@yahoo.com; Gary Fuller; perushton@roadrunner.com; Peter Rushton; Sara Languet;

deputyclerk; peter.rushton@maine.gov <peter.rushton@maine.gov>; peterfsargent@aol.com
Subject: RE: Sample illustration of required vegetative screening in districts other than village district
Date: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 9:40:36 AM

EXTERNAL MESSAGE:
Rich,
 
That’s a good suggestion to go along with clarifying that the planting requirement in the village
districts is different.  I suppose one way to do  that is to develop a second illustration for the Village
districts – wouldn’t be much of an illustration but again should make the point that the trees should
be planted outside the Town ROW.  I could easily do both illustrations if the Board decides this has
value as guidance to applicants on how to comply with that requirement in the ordinance. 
 
George
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10
 

From: Richard Baker
Sent: Monday, June 7, 2021 8:14 PM
To: George Seel
Cc: Anthony Wilson; Craig Alexander; Gary Fuller; Peter Rushton; Peter Rushton; Sara Languet;
deputyclerk; peter.rushton@maine.gov <peter.rushton@maine.gov>; peterfsargent@aol.com
Subject: Re: Sample illustration of required vegetative screening in districts other than village district
 
This looks good to me, and should be implemented.  My only question is whether the buffer can be
planted in the road right-of-way.  If not, we should be clear that the buffer must begin outside of the
ROW.  The applicant may need to ensure that the road officials are ok with what is being done.
Rich
 
On Mon, Jun 7, 2021 at 5:15 PM George Seel <georgeseel@outlook.com> wrote:

Peter et al.,
 
Not sure if you recall, but when we were reviewing the application for Kennebec Boat under the
Commercial Development Review ordinance, we developed a sample illustration of what the
ordinance requires for the planting of vegetative screening between the development and a
public road (if not a wooded site or it has been cleared) for those parts of Town not in a Village
District (BLV, Depot/Town office area & N. Belgrade).  We discussed the attached illustration and
decided at the time it would make a good handout to assist applicants understand their
obligations under the ordinance and what to include in their application.  This was a real challenge
with Kennebec Boat which to this day still has not complied with this requirement and condition
of their approval.  I happened across this while cleaning out some files and realized this probably
fell through the cracks and may not be provided to applicants as guidance.  I could be wrong.
 

mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
mailto:rpbaker11@gmail.com
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user7fceccb8
mailto:ceo@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user292da846
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:slanguet@gmail.com
mailto:deputyclerk@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
mailto:peterfsargent@aol.com
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986
mailto:rpbaker11@gmail.com
mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:crgsnbe@yahoo.com
mailto:ceo@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:perushton@roadrunner.com
mailto:perushton@gmail.com
mailto:slanguet@gmail.com
mailto:deputyclerk@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:Peter.Rushton@maine.gov
mailto:peterfsargent@aol.com
mailto:georgeseel@outlook.com


If indeed we have not been providing to CDRO applicants along with their application materials,
should we resume? Since so many of our applications are after-the-fact and require the planting
of vegetative screening.   If so, I would suggest one edit to clarify that this does not apply to the
three village districts where only native trees 4’ tall need to be planted every 50’ along a public
road.  Vegetative screens are the only requirement in the ordinance focused at improving the
aesthetics of a new development and a token effort at trying to maintain the rural character of
town.
 
George
 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 
 

https://na01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%3FLinkId%3D550986&data=04%7C01%7C%7C7b40eea9155a4dd0d13708d92a12514b%7C84df9e7fe9f640afb435aaaaaaaaaaaa%7C1%7C0%7C637587080418666347%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1by0hdR5KgSoq7dzpZucvikf68cRU%2FBrAFiujAQk1tI%3D&reserved=0


FIGURE 1
EXAMPLE OF HOW TO MEET REQUIREMENT FOR A PLANTED VEGETATIVE SCREEN 

ALONG A PUBLIC ROAD IN RESIDENTIAL & RURAL PORTIONS OF BELGRADE
Belgrade Commercial Development Review Ordinance (Article 5, Sec. 11.A)

Public 
right-
of way 

Public Road

25’

PL PL

Min. Height 
4½’

PL

Overhead View

Side View
PL

Applicable planting & maintenance spécifications on opposite page



FIGURE 1:  Belgrade Commercial Development Review Ordinance Vegetative 
Screening Along a Public Road in Residential & Rural Areas of Town:  

Planting & Maintenance Specifications (Article 5, Sec. 11.A)

• Applicable to all parts of town with the exception of the  “Village Districts” designated in the 2014 Belgrade Comprehensive Plan 
land use map

• Existing natural woodland along a public road is to be retained and uncut for a width of 50 ft. from the public road right-a-way; 
these planting requirements only apply where natural woodland does not exist.  

• Purpose to provide natural vegetative screen between the development and the public road, and thereby mitigate the visual 
impact of the development in primarily rural and residential areas of town.

• Plant only native tree & shrub species
• Trees must be 4 ½ ft. in height at time of planting, spaced no more than 30 ft. apart; must grow to full size (no exotic dwarf trees)
• Shrubs must be a minimum of 2 ft. in height at time of planting and grow to a height of 5 ft. at maturity
• Width of planted vegetative screen is to be 25 ft. from the edge of the public road right-of-way, except for that portion of Rt. 27 

from the railroad crossing in Belgrade Depot south to the Sidney town line.  There the screening need only be 20 ft. wide.  Planting 
should not occur in right-of-way.

• Plant trees and shrubs in alternating rows in sufficient density to provide a solid vegetative buffer.  Shrubs are to be planted to fill 
gaps between trees.

• Adequate visibility is to be maintained where the development driveway enters the public road to provide a safe line-of-sight.
• Vegetative screening must be fully planted prior to completion of project construction and prior to occupation of structures and

use of outdoor operating areas
• Vegetative screen must be maintained over life of the development; dead vegetation is to be replaced



FIGURE 2
EXAMPLE OF HOW TO MEET TREE PLANTING REQUIREMENT ALONG PUBLIC ROADS IN 
VILLAGE DISTRICT AS REQUIRED BY COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT REVIEW ORDINANCE

(Article 5, Sec. 11.C  )

30-50’

Public
right-of-
way

30- 50’

Proposed Development

Public Road

Planting & maintenance  specifications on opposite side 

Overhead View



Figure 2:  Belgrade Commercial Development Review Ordinance Tree Planting & 
Maintenance Specifications for Village Districts (Article 5, Sec. 11 C)

• Applies only to “Village Districts” as identified in the Town of Belgrade 2014 
Comprehensive Plan’s land use map 

• Only applies when no existing full size trees exist; if full size trees exist, sufficient trees 
are to be retained to maintain a spacing of 30-50 feet apart

• Trees to be planted are to be native conifers or deciduous trees
• Planted trees are to be placed 30-50 feet apart along entire public road frontage while 

allowing adequate visibility at project’s driveway entrance onto the Town or MDOT 
roadway

• Trees are not to be planted in the right-of-way of the public road
• At planting, trees shall be a minimum of 6’ in height
• Plantings that fail must be replaced
• As trees die over time, they are to be replaced



 

 

Town of Belgrade 

Planning Board 
June 22, 2021 / 5 p.m. 

 

SITE VISIT:  Cedar Mill Ridge Subdivision Map 6 Lot 16B 

 

M I N U T E S  
 

Present: Planning Board Members Peter Rushton, Rich Baker, Sara Languet, Tyler Evans 

(from Evans Development, LLC), Nate Veilleux and Jeff Allen.  
 

Subdivision location (presently with 11 lots --10 lots plus an existing one --so a 'mayor' Subdivision with 

opportunity to expand) of the Dunn Road (Map 6 Lot 16B) in Belgrade -- which original application came 

up to the Belgrade Planning Board on 10/01/2020. 

 

NOTES: 

(A) We were supplied with a hardcopy of  "preliminary" drawing-C0.1 with lot's divisions (also included 

in our June 17 ,2021 Planning Board packet) and clear topography.  The final drawing will be forwarded 

towards the middle of August 2021-- that is when Evans Development anticipates that they will be ready 

to go back to the Belgrade Planning Board.   

(B) They also expect to close their case in front of the Planning Board and favorably obtain approval 

before the November election vote when our new "subdivision ordinance" will take place.  So, the 

expectation here is that this particular subdivision application will run under the old rules (sort of speak 

grandfathered under the previous rules).  As the revisions of the new Belgrade Subdivision Ordinance is 

still in progress, presently the Belgrade Planning Board members in attendance at the site did not 

foresee any difference in the subdivision ordinances (old and new) that will affect (beneficially nor 

detrimentally) this Cedar Mill Ridge Subdivision application. 

(C) We walked through the clear cut area where the subdivision proposed road will eventually be 

permanently established.  Lots of huge boulders were removed to clear the path for the main road of 

the subdivision.  Thru the inspection of the site, it was mentioned that: 

1) DEP Stormwater Permit is all underway (or possibly completed!) 

2) The "preliminary" drawing presented contained area lots that are legal and in accordance with the 

Belgrade present Subdivision and Minimum Lot Size Ordinance per AE Hodsdon.   

3) With the Transfer Station (TS) on the other side of the road and with TS being at a lower elevation 

with storm water running opposite of and away from the Cedar Mill Ridge Subdivision, there is not 

concern of 'leaching' from the Transfer Station site to their location. 



 

 

4) Soil maps (testing needed?) for septic placement still needs to happen. 

5) Mr. Baker, Mr. Evans and Mr. Veilleux went on to inspect the water "steamline" in the property 

confirming what is in the drawing per Mr. Baker's report (together in the below email). 

(D) The present clear cutting and dirty "road" reflects and matches the road depicted in the supplied 

"preliminary" drawing-C0.1 

(E) Additional Jeff Allen will summarize notes and history (capturing their progress since October of 

2020) of the Cedar Mill Ridge Subdivision development this far and in a written report and such report 

will be forwarded to the Planning Board for review and approval. 

 

Motion by **                  to adjourn the meeting.  2nd by **          . Meeting adjourned at 
**time. 
  
 



 

 

Town of Belgrade 

Planning Board 
July 15, 2021 / 6:00 p.m. 

 
This meeting was conducted online via Zoom. A recording of the meeting can be viewed at: 

https://youtu.be/Ofwb7R-_glM 

M I N U T E S 
Call to Order-meeting called to order at 6:05pm by Chairman, Peter Rushton.   
 
Present:  Planning Board members Peter Rushton, George Seel, Craig Alexander, 
Sara languet, Pete Sargent, Planning Board Secretary Julie Morrison, Code 
Enforcement Office Gary Fuller, Sheila Thorne, Susan Poliacik, Karen Rancourt, 
Jim Coffin, Dwight Allison 
 
 
1. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. SHORELAND APPLICATION –  

Applicant/Owner: Susan Poliacik 

Location: 75 Lakeshore Drive (Long Pond), Map 24 Lot 19  

Purpose: Add screened porch and roof to existing deck (conforming structure) on 

a non-conforming lot. The findings of fact were completed.  A motion to 

approve application as written with a condition to adhere to DEP best 

stormwater management practices made by George Seel and 2nd by Craig 

Alexander.  Vote to approve 5-0  

 

B. COMMERICIAL DEVELOPMENT –   
Applicants/Owners: Gagne & Son Holding Co., Inc. 
Location: 28 Old Route 27 : Map 4 Lot 37 
Purpose: New commercial use.  Proposing to erect a new one-story 14,540 sf 
pre-cast plant.  The pre-cast plant will manufacture catch basins, manholes, etc.  
Proposed name:  Gagne & Son Precast Plant 
The Members of the Planning Board reviewed the checklist to decide if the 
application was complete.  The following was listed as needed:  The State 
Fire Marshall permit regarding the large propane tank, Minor change to the 
site plan scale error and dumpster location, DEP certified contractor name 
and number, A short letter explaining the driveway access, Estimated 
quantity of Hazardous substance, Phosphorus (possible waiver request).  
George motioned and Sara 2nd application is complete with highlighted 
provided, move to public hearing, and notify landowners withing 500 feet 
and placed on the August 5, 2021, meeting. 5-0  
 

 



 

 

C.  COMMERCIAL PERMITTING –  

Discussion of potential commercial permitting of food trucks.  After much 

discussion, it was decided that The Town of Belgrade does not need an 

Ordinance for food trucks. 

 

A walk on item regarding the timeline for getting the Minor/Major 

subdivision ordinance to the voters was discussed.  The CEO, Gary Fuller 

is going the check with Town Clerk, Mary Vogel to get the timeline dates. 

 

 

 
3. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Consideration of meeting minutes from July 1, 2021. The minutes from July 
1, 2021, meeting was tabled so the Planning Board Secretary could rewatch the 
meeting and clarify a decision,  
 

ADJOURN – Meeting adjourned at 9:00 pm.  


	Gagne PB Application.pdf
	SECTION 1 | APPLICABILITY
	Section 1.1 Facility Operations Description and General Facility Information (112.7(a)(3))
	Section 1.2 General    Applicability (112.1)
	Section 1.3 Qualified Facility Applicability (112.3(g))
	Section 1.4 Facility Response Plan Applicability

	SECTION 2 | GENERAL SPCC REQUIREMENTS
	Section 2.1 Facilities and Procedures to be Implemented 40 CFR 112
	Section 2.2 Conformance with 40 CFR 112 (112.7 (a)(1))
	Section 2.3 Deviations, Nonconformance, or Alternative Measures (112.7(a)(2))
	Section 2.4 Physical Facility Layout (112.7(a)(3))
	Section 2.4.1 Oil Storage Containers (112.7(a)(3)(i))
	Section 2.4.2 Discharge Prevention Measures & Product Handling (112.7(a)(3)(ii))
	Section 2.4.3 Discharge and Drainage Controls (112.7(a)(3)(iii))
	Section 2.4.4 Countermeasures for Discharge (112.7(a)(3)(iv))
	Section 2.4.5 Disposal Methods (112.7(a)(3)(v))
	Section 2.4.6 Emergency Contact List (112.7(a)(3)(vi))

	Section 2.5 Spill Reporting (112.7(a)(4))
	Section 2.6 Plan Organization/Emergency Response (112.7(a)(5))

	SECTION 3 | CONTAINMENT AND DISCHARGE PREDICTIONS
	Section 3.1  Spill Prediction and Direction (112.7(b))
	Section 3.2  Containment (112.7(c))
	Section 3.3 Impracticability of Containment (112.7(d))

	SECTION 4 | INSPECTION, TESTS, AND RECORDS
	Section 4.1 Tank Inspections (112.7(e))
	Section 4.2 Training (112.7(f)(1))
	Section 4.3 Designated Person Accountable for Spill Prevention (112.7(f)(2))
	Section 4.4 Spill Prevention Briefings (112.7(f)(3))

	SECTION 5 | SECURITY (112.7(g))
	Section 5.1 Access to Handling, Processing, or Storage
	Section 5.2 Secure Flow Valves
	Section 5.3  Secure Starter Controls
	Section 5.4  Pipeline Loading/Unloading Connection Securely Capped
	Section 5.5  Lighting

	SECTION 6 | FACILITY TANK TRUCK LOADING/UNLOADING OPERATIONS
	Section 6.1 Secondary Containment for Vehicles (112.7(h)(1))
	Section 6.2 Warning or Barrier System for Vehicles (112.7(h)(2))
	Section 6.3 Lowermost Drainage Inspection Outlets (112.7(h)(3))

	SECTION 7 | BRITTLE FRACTURE EVALUATION
	Section 7.1 Brittle Fracture Evaluations (112.7(i))

	SECTION 8 | STATE RULES, REGULATIONS, AND GUIDELINES
	Section 8.1 Conformance with Applicable State Rules and Regulations (112.7(j))

	SECTION 9 | QUALIFIED OIL FILLED OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT
	Section 9.1 Qualified Oil-Filled Operational Equipment (112.7(k)(1))
	Section 9.2 Oil-Filled Equipment Inspection and Monitoring (112.7(k)(2))

	SECTION 10 | FACILITY DRAINAGE
	Section 10.1 Drainage from Diked Storage Areas (112.8(b)(1))
	Section 10.2  Valves Used on Diked Area Storage (112.8(b)(2))
	Section 10.3  Drainage Systems from Undiked Areas (112.8(b)(3))
	Section 10.4  Final Discharge of Drainage (112.8(b)(4))
	Section 10.5 Facility Drainage Systems and Equipment (112.8(b)(5))

	SECTION 11 | BULK STORAGE CONTAINERS
	Section 11.1 Tank Compatibility with its Contents (112.8(c)(1))
	Section 11.2 Secondary Containment Construction (112.8(c)(2))
	Section 11.3 Diked Areas, Inspection and Drainage of Rainwater (112.8(c)(3))
	Section 11.4 Corrosion of Buried Metallic Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(4))
	Section 11.5 Corrosion Protection of Partially Buried or Bunkered Metallic Tanks (112.8(c)(5))
	Section 11.7 Control of Leakage through Internal Heating Coils (112.8(c)(7))
	Section 11.8 Tank Installation Fail-Safe Engineered (112.8(c)(8))
	Section 11.9 Observation of Disposal Facilities for Effluent Discharge (112.8(c)(9))
	Section 11.10  Oil Leak Corrections from Tank Seams and Gaskets (112.8(c)(10))
	Section 11.11   Appropriate Position of Mobile or Portable Oil Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(11))

	SECTION 12 | FACILITY TRANSFER OPERATIONS
	Section 12.1 Buried Piping Installation Protection (112.8(d)(1))
	Section 12.2 Not-In-Service Terminal Connections (112.8(d)(2))
	Section 12.3 Pipe Supports Design (112.8(d)(3))
	Section 12.4 Aboveground Valve and Pipeline Examination (112.8(d)(4))
	Section 12.5  Aboveground Piping Protection from Vehicular Traffic (112.8(d)(5))

	10085.001.2016-SPCC.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SPCC



	PB 08.05.2021 meeting agenda and packet.pdf
	Gagne PB Application.pdf
	SECTION 1 | APPLICABILITY
	Section 1.1 Facility Operations Description and General Facility Information (112.7(a)(3))
	Section 1.2 General    Applicability (112.1)
	Section 1.3 Qualified Facility Applicability (112.3(g))
	Section 1.4 Facility Response Plan Applicability

	SECTION 2 | GENERAL SPCC REQUIREMENTS
	Section 2.1 Facilities and Procedures to be Implemented 40 CFR 112
	Section 2.2 Conformance with 40 CFR 112 (112.7 (a)(1))
	Section 2.3 Deviations, Nonconformance, or Alternative Measures (112.7(a)(2))
	Section 2.4 Physical Facility Layout (112.7(a)(3))
	Section 2.4.1 Oil Storage Containers (112.7(a)(3)(i))
	Section 2.4.2 Discharge Prevention Measures & Product Handling (112.7(a)(3)(ii))
	Section 2.4.3 Discharge and Drainage Controls (112.7(a)(3)(iii))
	Section 2.4.4 Countermeasures for Discharge (112.7(a)(3)(iv))
	Section 2.4.5 Disposal Methods (112.7(a)(3)(v))
	Section 2.4.6 Emergency Contact List (112.7(a)(3)(vi))

	Section 2.5 Spill Reporting (112.7(a)(4))
	Section 2.6 Plan Organization/Emergency Response (112.7(a)(5))

	SECTION 3 | CONTAINMENT AND DISCHARGE PREDICTIONS
	Section 3.1  Spill Prediction and Direction (112.7(b))
	Section 3.2  Containment (112.7(c))
	Section 3.3 Impracticability of Containment (112.7(d))

	SECTION 4 | INSPECTION, TESTS, AND RECORDS
	Section 4.1 Tank Inspections (112.7(e))
	Section 4.2 Training (112.7(f)(1))
	Section 4.3 Designated Person Accountable for Spill Prevention (112.7(f)(2))
	Section 4.4 Spill Prevention Briefings (112.7(f)(3))

	SECTION 5 | SECURITY (112.7(g))
	Section 5.1 Access to Handling, Processing, or Storage
	Section 5.2 Secure Flow Valves
	Section 5.3  Secure Starter Controls
	Section 5.4  Pipeline Loading/Unloading Connection Securely Capped
	Section 5.5  Lighting

	SECTION 6 | FACILITY TANK TRUCK LOADING/UNLOADING OPERATIONS
	Section 6.1 Secondary Containment for Vehicles (112.7(h)(1))
	Section 6.2 Warning or Barrier System for Vehicles (112.7(h)(2))
	Section 6.3 Lowermost Drainage Inspection Outlets (112.7(h)(3))

	SECTION 7 | BRITTLE FRACTURE EVALUATION
	Section 7.1 Brittle Fracture Evaluations (112.7(i))

	SECTION 8 | STATE RULES, REGULATIONS, AND GUIDELINES
	Section 8.1 Conformance with Applicable State Rules and Regulations (112.7(j))

	SECTION 9 | QUALIFIED OIL FILLED OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT
	Section 9.1 Qualified Oil-Filled Operational Equipment (112.7(k)(1))
	Section 9.2 Oil-Filled Equipment Inspection and Monitoring (112.7(k)(2))

	SECTION 10 | FACILITY DRAINAGE
	Section 10.1 Drainage from Diked Storage Areas (112.8(b)(1))
	Section 10.2  Valves Used on Diked Area Storage (112.8(b)(2))
	Section 10.3  Drainage Systems from Undiked Areas (112.8(b)(3))
	Section 10.4  Final Discharge of Drainage (112.8(b)(4))
	Section 10.5 Facility Drainage Systems and Equipment (112.8(b)(5))

	SECTION 11 | BULK STORAGE CONTAINERS
	Section 11.1 Tank Compatibility with its Contents (112.8(c)(1))
	Section 11.2 Secondary Containment Construction (112.8(c)(2))
	Section 11.3 Diked Areas, Inspection and Drainage of Rainwater (112.8(c)(3))
	Section 11.4 Corrosion of Buried Metallic Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(4))
	Section 11.5 Corrosion Protection of Partially Buried or Bunkered Metallic Tanks (112.8(c)(5))
	Section 11.7 Control of Leakage through Internal Heating Coils (112.8(c)(7))
	Section 11.8 Tank Installation Fail-Safe Engineered (112.8(c)(8))
	Section 11.9 Observation of Disposal Facilities for Effluent Discharge (112.8(c)(9))
	Section 11.10  Oil Leak Corrections from Tank Seams and Gaskets (112.8(c)(10))
	Section 11.11   Appropriate Position of Mobile or Portable Oil Storage Tanks (112.8(c)(11))

	SECTION 12 | FACILITY TRANSFER OPERATIONS
	Section 12.1 Buried Piping Installation Protection (112.8(d)(1))
	Section 12.2 Not-In-Service Terminal Connections (112.8(d)(2))
	Section 12.3 Pipe Supports Design (112.8(d)(3))
	Section 12.4 Aboveground Valve and Pipeline Examination (112.8(d)(4))
	Section 12.5  Aboveground Piping Protection from Vehicular Traffic (112.8(d)(5))

	10085.001.2016-SPCC.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	SPCC



	CDRO Veg Screening Planting Guidance Figs 1  2.pdf
	FIGURE 1�EXAMPLE OF HOW TO MEET REQUIREMENT FOR A PLANTED VEGETATIVE SCREEN ALONG A PUBLIC ROAD IN RESIDENTIAL & RURAL PORTIONS OF BELGRADE�Belgrade Commercial Development Review Ordinance (Article 5, Sec. 11.A)
	FIGURE 1:  Belgrade Commercial Development Review Ordinance Vegetative Screening Along a Public Road in Residential & Rural Areas of Town:  �Planting & Maintenance Specifications (Article 5, Sec. 11.A)
	FIGURE 2�EXAMPLE OF HOW TO MEET TREE PLANTING REQUIREMENT ALONG PUBLIC ROADS IN VILLAGE DISTRICT AS REQUIRED BY COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT REVIEW ORDINANCE�(Article 5, Sec. 11.C  )�
	Figure 2:  Belgrade Commercial Development Review Ordinance Tree Planting & Maintenance Specifications for Village Districts (Article 5, Sec. 11 C)



